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About NALSC

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (NALSC) is a legal services
office serving the Nishnawbe Aski Nation (NAN) communities in northern
Ontario. NALSC was established in 1990 as a non-profit organization to
address the shortcomings in the administration of justice within NAN.
Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services has grown since 1990— working hard to
develop a professional image and hiring qualified staff to carry out its
mandate. Innovative and creative programs have made NALSC a leader
and, at times, an example in alternatives to justice programs. NALSC has
met with success in these areas.

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation is governed by a Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors provide overall direction to ensure
NALSC serves the needs of NAN community members, and that NALSC
programs and services are delivered as mandated and in accordance with
its mission.

Board of Directors

Jim Beardy, Independent First Nations Alliance—Chair

Jason Batise, Wabun Tribal Council—Vice-Chair

Celia Echum, Matawa First Nations Management—Secretary/Treasurer
Frank McKay, Windigo Tribal Council

Simon Winnepetonga, Shibogama Tribal Council

Chris Kakegamic, Keewaytinook Okimakanak

Theresa Spence, Mushkegowuk Tribal Council

Tom Wassaykeesic, Independent Bands

Greg Koostachin—Elder NAN East

Sarah Waboose—Elder NAN Central

Abe Kakepetum—Elder NAN West

Anna Betty Achneepineskum, Deputy Grand Chief—NAN Ex-Officio
Randall Crowe — Youth Representative

Management

Derek Stephen—Executive Director
Mary Bird—LAO Area Director

Vernon Morris—Director of Services
Carol Buswa—Talking Together Manager
Tara Thompson—Financial Manager



Message from the Chair

Wa-chi-ya!  Greetings!

As the Chair of NAN Legal Services Corporation (NLSC), it is a great pleasure to send greetings to
the people of Nishnawbe-Aski Nation on behalf of the Board of Directors and staff of this
organization. Without a good working relationship between the board, staff, and First Nations
to maintain existing services, programs, and expanding to new horizons, this organization
would not be where it is today.

This past year, we had a change of leadership for the Corporation. As previously noted, our long
time Executive Director, Celina Reitberger, retired in June 2017. Derek Stephen of Muskegowuk
territory was hired in September 2018 as the incoming new Executive Director. It is a great
opportunity for changes and new beginnings whenever there is a change of leadership in an
organization.

Over the past year, NLSC continues to strive to cover a wider range of legal initiatives to meet
client needs, expand client-focused services and improve access to justice. But overall, one
main focus is to increase our communication and contact with the NAN First Nation
communities. We recognize the importance of strong communication and network between
our organization and First Nations to achieve strong presence in the justice system serving NLSC
catchment area.

Reflecting back to the original resolution passed by the NAN Chiefs to create this corporation;
NLSC strives to stay focus on the primary goal, purpose and mandate of the organization. This
means developing services and programs that are culturally based and oriented, recruiting
community-based staff with language and knowledge of the first nation people, promoting
justice in the best interest of first nation people and various other key components of the
judicial system to complement aboriginal justice.

With the recent election of a PC government for Ontario, changes will definitely take place.
However our focus will remain same. | strongly believe that the Chiefs of Nishnawbe-Aski
Nation will influence the newly elected PC Premier to support first nation issues.

God bless our great nation.
Meegwetch!

Jim Beardy
Chair
NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION (NLSC)



Message from the Executive Director

On September 2017, | started with Nishnawbe Aski Legal Services Corporation to take on the role of an
Executive Director.

Well first of all let me introduce myself | am CREE from the James Bay Coast raised by grandparents of
late Chief William Stephen and Maggie Stephen.

Coming into an organization to unknown territory was kind of exciting and a challenge. When | began
here at NALSC | felt so welcomed by staff and communities and made it to transition easily.

As the Executive Director of Nishnawbe Aski Legal Services, it makes me proud to announce that after 25
+ years of service, our corporation has come a long way in accomplishing our goals and mandate by
providing services to its people within the 49 First Nation communities of NAN. | would like to take this
moment, to say thank you to each of you who have played a vital role at NALSC.

What began as a small company with a few employees has grown to be more than 100 employees. Our
corporation began over 25 years ago with the vision of our elders and past chiefs to assist our
communities and people in a legal field to represent them. Today we are servicing 49 communities in
Treaty 9 area Treaty 3 and 5 area, which proved to be exceptionally productive. Due to the staff increase
we have since then opened a new office space in the Timmins area to service the Mushkegowuk Tribal
Council and Wabun Tribal Council area. Our new office was officially opened in February 2018. We also
acquired a new and bigger office space in Thunder Bay to address our increased staff. In September
2018 we will be moving into the old court house on Arthur Street.

Our corporation has recorded many achievements and accomplishments, especially during the last few
years, which have proved to be exceptionally productive and grown.

Without the support of our excellent team we would not have been able to grow this quickly. Every one
of you plays a very important role in the development of our corporation. It is the enthusiasm, support
and dedication that have brought us to this level. NALSC shall forever remain indebted to the
contribution of its employees, chief and council’s and communities for their support.

We are also grateful to our partners and clients who trust in us to provide services to our communities
and peoples. Their demands, challenges and feedback have pushed us to constantly and vigorously
improve. Our success story remains incomplete without the support of our clients and partners. Not
only have they made us a part of their lives but also helped us reach out to do more. They spread the
word about our services on how we can help them better their lives.

We plan to keep our business and personal relationships growing with our clients and partners. We will
continue to provide you nothing less than the best. With your support, we will continue to explore new
heights this year to better service our clients and communities.

Recently, during the January 2018 NAN Chief’s meeting held in Thunder Bay, ON; NALSC presented a
resolution for the support of developing a form of our own correctional facilities through Healing
Lodges; this resolution was passed and accepted. NALSC also prepared and submitted a proposal to the
Corrections Canada to fund for Healing Lodges proposal to look alternative ways dealing with over
representation of peoples in the jail system.



As always, | thank everyone who supports NALSC in helping us to achieve our goals and objectives as a
corporation.

Meegwetch
Derek Stephen

Executive Director at NALSC

Grand Opening of NALSC Timmins Office 2018



Date

September 20 to 22, 2017

September 25

October 4

October 11
October 12
October 17, 18

October 30"

November 2
November 7" to 10"

November 15

November 23" and 24"
December 4™ to 8"
December 13"
December 14"
December 19"
December 20"

January 9" to 11"

January 16"

January 16" to 18"

January 30" to February 1%

February 7"
February 6™ to 8"

February 9™

Activity
Mushkegowuk Council AGA in Taykwa Tagamou Nation.

NALSC “ON THE FRONTLINE” session in Dryden

Sioux Lookout with Nishnawbe Aski Police Services Inspector Darryl
Snider on VWP

Muskrat Dam First Nation By Law meeting
Keewaytinook Okimakanak in Dryden
Board Meeting

Community visit to do a presentation on our programs requested by the
Fort Hope First Nation Chief and Council

Pikangikum First Nation
Public Legal Education tour James Bay Coastal communities

Payukotayno James and Hudson Bay Family service in signing a protocol
agreement

Winnepeg, Manitoba with all managers for our retreat

all staff training in Thunder Bay

meeting with Tikinagan Child and Family Services here in Thunder Bay.
Board meeting here in Thunder Bay

meeting with Chief of Police Armstrong Re: Protocol Agreement
meeting with Dayna from Community Justice Hub

Deputy Grand Chief and | and couple of staff members visited a healing
lodge center in Prince Albert

meeting in Fort William Reserve with Carol with Dilico to discuss
Protocol Agreement

By Law Conference at the Valhalla Inn.

NAN Chief’'s meeting

grand opening for our new office space in Timmins
Mushkegowuk Council Emergency summit

meeting with MCSCS Correctional Services Transformation: re: Proposed
Policy Approach in Thunder Bay at the Valhalla Inn to discuss new
legislation proposed



February 14™
February 21° & 22™
February 27" to March 1%
March 7

March 20" & 21*
March 22" & 23"
March 29"

April 3™

April 18"

April 20"

April 23™

May 8" to 10™

May 23" to 24"
May 28" to 30"
June 7%

June 18"

June 26" to 28"

Tikinagan Child and Family Services to propose a Protocol Agreement

Board Meeting

By Law Conference Timmins
Kuno Meeting

Board Meeting

COO Justice Forum

Sandy Lake First Nation
Pikangikum First Nation
White Sand First Nation
Slate Falls First Nation

Dilco Meeting

NAN Chiefs Meeting

Aboriginal Senate to Bill C45 — Cannabis Law/ Ottawa

Pikangikum First Nation
Sandy Lake First Nation
Kashechewan First Nation

Chiefs of Ontario AGM

Renewed Vision Statement exercises - 2018



Annual Report of the Area Director - Legal Aid Ontario - 2017 - 2018
Mary Bird

| am pleased to present my Annual Report to the Chiefs in Assembly.

Certificates

There have been no changes to the Legal Aid Ontario certificate program during this quarter.
Our office continues to issue more certificates than the Northwest office.

Staff Duty Counsel

We have still not received funding for Shannon’s position for the fiscal year 2016-2017 or 2017-
2018. Randall Ellsworth recently advised Derek Stephen that we had agreed to pay Shannon
out of the surplus. No such agreement was made. The surplus issue has not been resolved as
LAO has taken no steps to have their accountants meet with ours despite several requests to do
so. As it is the position of the Board that the surplus belongs to NALSC, it is my position that
Legal Aid agreed to fund Shannon and should do so. As documented in my last report, Shannon
has saved LAO considerable money, more than her cost. Those savings do not get reflected in
the overall LAO/NALSC budget.

We still have a proposal to Legal Aid for an Indigenous Staff Lawyer for Timmins and Sioux
Lookout Bay who are greatly needed.

Complaint regarding Justice of the Peace McNally

August 18, 2017, Justice of the Peace McNally, Kenora made a comment to our staff lawyer,
Shannon McDonnough, that perhaps her “ancestors had scalped him” referring to his earlier
comment about Benny Hill. A joint complaint has been made by myself and Arthur Huminuk of
Grand Council Treaty 3 to the Justice of the Peace Review Committee regarding this remark.
There are other instances of racist comments by this Justice of the Peace that we will be
bringing to the Committee. The Criminal Lawyers’ Association has also brought a complaint
regarding this and the Indigenous Division of the Ministry of the Attorney General has
requested that the Criminal Law Division of MAG bring a complaint also. This was particularly
insulting given that Shannon is a member of the Mi’kmaq Nation who only six weeks earlier
were confronted by a white supremacist group for holding a ceremony at Lord Cornwallis’
statue in Halifax to protest Lord Cornwallis’s issuance of a bounty on scalps of any and all
Mi’kmagq persons.



Legal Aid Ontario

Unfortunately we have not had a quarterly meeting with Legal Aid Ontario since September
2016. There are numerous issues that need to be discussed and Legal Aid has cancelled each
meeting thus far. It was announced earlier this year that Randall Ellsworth, LAO Vice President
for the Northern Region has taken on further responsibilities which leaves me very concerned
as to his ability to work with NALSC. We have finally arranged for a Quarterly Meeting to occur
on 27 July 2018.

New Staff and Positions

Emilene Dumoulin — Gladue Team Leader, Timmins

Terri Zoccole, Gladue Aftercare Worker, Thunder Bay

Jillian Louttit — Gladue Aftercare Worker, Timmins

Theresa Turmel, Gladue Writer, Timmins

Catherine Gull, Gladue Writer, Timmins

Adrienne Fox, Gladue Writer, Sioux Lookout

Gillian Schaible — Gladue Case Worker

Cindy Beardy has been hired as Gladue Aftercare Worker in Thunder Bay.
Lloyd Redsky has been hired as Gladue Aftercare Worker in Kenora.

George Edwards will now be based full time out of Thunder Bay.
Amanda Sainnawap — Bail Verification and Supervision Program, Pikangikum
Karen Pine-Cheechoo, Bail Verification and Supervision Supervisor, Timmins
Clinton Patrick, Bail Verification and Supervision worker Timmins

Danielle Woods has now been called to the Bar. We were able to get one year intern funding
for her so we now have a lawyer who can assist NAN members in POA court or who are not
eligible for Legal Aid but require assistance. Danielle has also been working on developing
Public Legal Education programs for the communities and will be working with Derek Stephen
and Cecilia Fiddler on by-laws.

Subsequently we applied for and received funding for 10 Community Release and Reintegration
Workers to be placed in the following communities;

Cat Lake, Deer Lake, Eabamatoong, FortAlbany/Kashechewan, (1) Fort Severn, Marten
Falls, Pikangikum, Peawanuck, Poplar Hill and Weagamow

NALSC is seeking a candidate from each community to work with First Nation clients in a
culturally appropriate manner. This is a full time position at 35 hours per week and
commencing as soon as possible. The Community Release and Reintegration Program



will provide wrap-around services from pre-charge diversion, to bail, through to
sentencing and reintegration. These workers will be part of the Indigenous Bail
Variation and Supervision Program, will be trained to do Restorative Justice Circles,
Youth and Intervention, assist Gladue workers to provide community information and
support both during the process of preparing the report and following up on any
recommendations in the community. To date we have hired one worker, Charles
Benson from Weagamow.

We also received funding under the same program to have Terri Zoccole (one of our Gladue
Case Workers who is trained and qualified to provide this training) design the program for and
train these workers in Anger Management so that they will be qualified to provide Anger
Management counselling in the community.

The program also provided further funding for Danielle Woods to assist as a Gladue lawyer as
we are required to have a lawyer review each report. The demand for reports is growing and
this became impossible for me to do alone.

The program also provided funding for a Community Outreach Worker who is based out of
Timmins. We have hired Janet McKay for this position. The Community Outreach and Research
Worker will be responsible for providing community information for the benefit of the Gladue
Workers and the Community Release and Reintegration Program. The information will be
available to all NALSC workers.

This program also provided funding to provide funds to expand Lorraine Crowe’s Duties to
include acting as the Gladue Language and Liaison Worker. Lorraine is fluent in Cree, Oji-Cree
and Ojibway so is available for any telephone calls coming in from anywhere in the NAN
territory for clients participating, or interested in participating in the Gladue program.

Austin Williams was our L.U. Law School Placement for the fall term.

Richard Garrett was our L.U. Law School Placement for the winter term.

Tamaira Davidson is our Debwewin Student for the summer.

Presentations and Programs

5 April 2017 — Meeting with the Ontario Independent Police Review Department regarding
racism issues in Thunder Bay and failure to respond to complaints made by citizens of NAN
when they were treated improperly by the police from carding to actual physical violence by
the police.

7 April 2017 — Attended at the Annual Training of the Bail Verification and Supervisions Program
to pursue obtaining funding for the Indigenous Bail Verification and Supervision Program.



20 April 2017 — Participation in the Presentation of the Release of the Tulloch Report on Police
Oversight.

Week of 10 July — | attended at the National Criminal Law Program
18 July 2017 — Gladue Writer presentation to North Spirit Lake

3 August 2017 — Meeting with Wayne Muir, Executive Director, Victoria Aboriginal Legal
Services, Melbourne Australia

8 August 2017 — Presented at Keewaywin Conference — introduced motion for NALSC Victim
Witness Liaison Program — motion tabled later and passed

9 August 2017 - Meeting with Logan Harvey NeChee Bail Supervision Supervisor, Kenora, to
design and coordinate NALSC Bail Supervision program with NeChee’s.

11 September 2017 — Meeting re Trusted Intermediary Project.

11 September 2017 — Cochrane North Overnight Hold Project — (people arrested in
communities)

26 September 2017 — Meeting with Mishkeegogamang re: Bringing Court to the Community

28 September 2017 — Kenora Bench and Bar meeting — to address backlog in Pikangikum and
delays in Kenora plea court that are keeping people in custody too long

29 September 2017 — Kenora District Law Association Quarterly Meeting.

13 October 2017 — Presentation to the Bora Laskin Law School on the Indigenous Peoples Court
23 October 2017 — Consultation on Guide for Lawyers Working with Indigenous People and
Issues — | have been invited to review the draft document. This is a joint venture between the
Indigenous Bar Association, the Advocates Society and the Law Society.

12 November 2017 — Gladue presentation to South Cochrane Addictions

12 November 2017 — Gladue presentation to Timmins Native Friendship Centre

14 November 2017 CLW Community visit to Sachigo Lake

17 November 2017 — Meeting with Deputy Grand Chief Anna Betty Achneepineskukm, Derek

Stephen, Regional Senior Justice Elder and Regional Senior Justice of the Peace Zuliani regarding
creating protocols with the communities regarding bail, court cancellations, etc.



22 November 2017 — Interviewed by lan Scott, investigator for the Justice of the Peace Review
Committee regarding complaint against J.P. McNally

22 November 2017 — Gladue worker presentation to Shelter House, Thunder Bay
22 November 2017 — Gladue worker presentation to John Howard Society
23 November 2017 — Gladue Worker presentation to Elizabeth Fry Society

28 and 29 November Community Legal Worker community visit Kashechewan to complete
firearms applications.

30 November 2017 — Attendance at Kenora Bench and Bar. Discussion regarding lack of Bail
hearings by panel lawyers.

6 December 2017 — Gladue presentation on Wawatay

13 December 2017 — Community Legal Worker and Gladue Worker presentation at Matawa
Chiefs meetings

14 and 15 December 2017 — Gladue worker presentation to Creighton Youth Centre
15 December 2017 — Gladue Writer presentation to Muskrat Dam

22 January 2018 — recommenced meetings with Kinneawaya Legal Clinic. Ongoing.

30 January 2018 — Gladue worker presentation to Bora Laskin Law School

31 January 2018 — Attended at Public Hearings on Tulloch Inquiry regarding Carding

7 February 2018 — Gladue worker presentation to Thunder Bay Probation

14 February 2018 — Gladue Writer presentation to Mishkeegogamang

15 February 2018 — Gladue worker presentation to Dilico Child and Family Services

18 February 2018 — Gladue worker presentation to Inmates at Thunder Bay District Jail
8 March 2017 — Gladue presentation to Wagoshig First Nation

27 March 2018 — Participated in Inaugural Meeting of Maamawa meeting Thunder Bay to
develop an anti-racism project



29 March 2018 — Lakehead University Advisory Committee

Regular meetings of the Indigenous Peoples’ Court, Thunder Bay Criminal Court Committee,
Kenora Stakeholder Committee, Meetings, Court Modernization Committee, Northern
Coordination Committee LAO, Thunder Bay Bail Committee, Timmins Bail Committee,
Northwest Regional Leadership Meeting, NeChee Indigenous Bail Verification Program, Kenora
District Law Association.

Projects and Proposals

Community Justice Program — The Indigenous Justice Branch of MAG has now purchase the
Northlands Shelter in Kenora. The intention is to renovate the building to provide decent bail
beds and to also coordinate the rules with the Indigenous Bail Supervision Program to provide
support to accused persons released in Kenora. They are hoping to have this operating in the
new fiscal year. This is to be followed up with proposals for similar programs in Sioux Lookout
and Timmins/Cochrane. We at NALSC are part of the planning for this ongoing program.

Training

19 June 2017 — the NALSC LAO staff and the Community Legal Workers attended at the
Branford Indigenous Peoples Court for a day and meeting with the Six Nations Legal Workers.
Attended at Legal Aid Ontario Head Office, Toronto, for a day long training session. A day with
the Social Justice Tribunals, also Toronto, for training regarding the tribunals and information
about the process (i.e., if a legal issue is flagged how can you help someone navigate the
process). The staff advised that this was very helpful in assisting us in directing clients to the
appropriate agency for legal issues that Legal Aid Ontario does not cover and NALSC does not
have the capacity to cover.

5 July 2017 — Teleconference training for LAO staff on Domestic Violence Strategy

2 to 4 October 2017 — All Gladue staff attended at a Gladue training session in Toronto
sponsored by the Indigenous Branch of the Attorney General.

6 -9 November Gladue Thunder Bay workers mediation training
10 — 11 November — Gladue training Annual Abuse Shatters Lives Conference, Timmins
23 November 2017 — Gladue workers Naloxone Training

23 and 24 November 2017 — Manager training in Winnipeg.



30 November 2017 — Gladue workers — Addressing Sexual Violence Workshop
December 5, 6 and 7th 2017 — All staff training Thunder Bay

11 December 2017 — Gladue Workers Lateral Violence Training

18 December 2017 — Gladue Workers Violence Against Women Workshops

16 — 18 January 2018 — Community Legal Workers, Bail Verification Worker and Gladue Workers
By-law Conference

18 — 19 January — Gladue Trauma Training at Timmins Native Friendship Centre
21 February 2018 — HUB training for Gladue workers
Community Release and Rehabilitation Program Proposal
Attached as Appendix “D”
Regular meetings of the Thunder Bay Criminal Court Committee, Kenora Stakeholder
Committee, Meetings, Court Modernization Committee, Northern Coordination Committee

LAO, Thunder Bay Bail Committee, Timmins Bail Committee, Northwest Regional Leadership
Meeting.

Statistics

Gladue Program —

Total number of reports requested and completed 19
at beginning of reporting period

Total number of reports requested during period 27
Total number of reports completed during period 44
Total number of letters completed during period 08
Total number of requests withdrawn 02
Total number of reports not completed and carried forward 07
Total number of reports denied at request of program director 01

Legal Aid Statistics

Attached as Appendix “A” — GDR/Duty Counsel Expense Report, Certificates and Persons
Assisted

Advice Lawyer

Attached as Appendix “B”



APPENDIX “A”
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APPENDIX “B”



Nishnawba-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontarie-Duty Counsal Statisitlces

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Apr-17

TOTALS —
|€siminal 11|Phane Call 31iMale 16}
[Family 18|walk In 7|Female 29
[Employment ofemall of

Civil ofFallow Up 2}

Admin of

Estats 4

First Natlon 4

Treaty o)

Qther 3}
[Matawa (Windigo

Aroland 1 |Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 2 |cat Lake 0
Eabamatoong 1 Koocheching o]
Ginoogaming 0 North Caribou ol
Homepayne of Sachigo Lake of
Long Lake #58 1 slate Falls 0
Marten Falls 2 Whitewater Lake 0
|Neskantaga 1 Total 1
Nibinamik 2 jwabun

Webequie 1 Beaverhousa |
Total 11} Brunswick House ]
[1ENA Chapleau of
[Kitchanuhmaykoosi 1 Matachewan aof
Lac Seut 3 [Mattagami s}
[Muskrat Dam o] Wahgoshig o]
[Piiangikum o} Total 5
Whitssand 0 [Mushkegowu

Tatal 4 Attawapiskat 3
independants {Chapleau Crae ol
[Flylng Post of Fort Albany 5

Mishkeegogamang o Kashechewan

Macrehee o |Missanabie of
Sandy Lake 3| [Moose Cree 1

eenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou 0]
Total 4 Total 9]
Keewaytinook Oklmakanak Shibogama
|eer Lake 1 [kasabonika Lake 1|
[Fort Severn o} l@glsherlake o}
Keewaywin o} Wapekeka o}
MacDowell Lake o| Wawakapewin o}
{North Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake 2
Poplar Hill 2 Tatal 2
Total 3 Other 1
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =40




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
May-17
TOTALS i
Criminal 14]Phane Call 33|Male 16}
Family 16{Walk In 6|Female 23)
{Employment 1jEmall ]|
[ 2}Follow Up o}
Admin 0]
[Estate 6}
|First Nation o]
Treaty of
|other of
Matawa [Windigo |
Aroland 1/ |Bearskin Lake o
Constance Lake 2 Cat Lake 1
Eabametoong 51 Koocheching [i]
|Glnoogaming 1 North Caribou 2
{Homepayne o} Sachigo Lake of
|Long Lake 458 of Stata Falls o}
Marten Falls 2 Whitewater Lake o}
[Neskantaga 3 Fotal 3
{nibinamik ol Wabun
Webequie o] Bsaverhouse of
Total 14} |Brunswick House [
lirva |Chapleau 1
|itchenuhmaykaasi 1 Matachewan 0
[Lac Seul 1 Mattagami 2
|Muskrat Dam D |Wahgoshig 0
Plkangtkum o Total 3]
Whitesand o} [Mushkegawu
Total 2 Attawaplskat 2
independants Chapleau Crea 0
Flying Post 0 Fort Albany 2
Mishkeagogamang 2| Kashechewan o]
Mocrebec 0 Missanabia o}
Sandy Lake 1 Moose Crea 2
Weenusk 1] Taykwa Tagamou 2
otal 3 Total 8
[Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Deer Lake o] Kasabonlka Lake o]
fort Severn o} iinglisher Lake o]
|Keewaywin 2 Wapekaka 2
[MacDowell Lake ol lwawakapewin o}
|North Spirit 1ake Dj Wunnumin Lake 1
Paplar Hill o Tatal 3
Tatal 2| Other 1
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 39




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontarle-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyar
Jun-17
ITOTALS
Criminal 7{Phone Call 29|Male 14
Familly 10)walk In 8lFemale 23
{Empioyment 2|Emall o
[l 10{Follow Up of
Admin o]
|Estate 4
[First Nation 1
Treaty [+f
Othar 3
Matawa | Windi
Aroland a |Bearsidn Lake i
{Constance Lake 1 |Cat Lake 1
[Eabametoong 5 [Koacheching 0
[Ginoogaming D North Carlbou [
[Homepayna o} Sachigo Lake 1
Long Lake HS8 0 Slate Falls |
Marten Falls 1 Whitewater Lake of
{Neskantaga Totai 3
[Nibinamik 1 Wabun
[webequle i |Beaverhouse [
Total 8 [Brunswick House [
SFNA |chapleau 0
[«itchenuhmaykoosi 2 |Matachawan 0
|Lac Sew 1 [Mattagami 1
Muskrat Dam 0] Wahgoshig 0]
Pikangikum 1 Tatal 1
Whitesand 0 Mushksgowu
Total 4 Attawaplskat 1
Independants [Chapleau Cree of
Flying Post ol Fart Albany 1
Mishkeegogamang 2 Kashechawan o
Mocrabec 0 Missanable 0
Sandy Lake 1 Moose Cree 1
Weenusk [ Taykwa Tagamou ol
Total 3 iTotal 3
|Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Dear Lake 2 [Kasabonika Lake 0
Fort Sevemn 2 Kingfisher Lake 1
Keewaywin 1] IWapelteka 1
MacDowell Lake 0 |Wawakapewin of
North Spirit Lake 1 [Wunnumin Lake i}
Poplar HIll 1 Total 2
Tatal & Other 7
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =37




Nishnawhe-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse] Statisitles

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Jula7
[raTaLs
[Criminal 11|rhone Call 30|Male 1
Family 18]Walk In 6)Femals 25
Employment ojemail [l|
[cwit afFollow Up o]
Admin of
|Estats
[Flest Nation o]
Treaty 0j
{othar 1)
Matawa | Windigo
Aroland o} Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 1 [Cat Lake 4] |
|[Eabametoong q Koocheching o
|Ginoogaming 1] North Caribau 2
[Homepayne Sachigo Lake o}
I_Eﬂuke HsB 0l Slate Falls of
Marten Falls 2] Whitewater Lake o|
[Neskantaga 0 Total 3
|NIbinamik 1 Wabun
|webequie o} Beaverhouse [i
Total | IBrunstt House ol
[ [chapleau o}
[Kitchenuhmaykoos! 3 [Matachewan of
ltacSeul 1 |mattagami o]
IMuskrat Dam gl Wahgashig o]
Plkangikum Tatal 0
[whitesand o] [Mushkegawu
Total 4 Attawaplskat 2
|independants IChapleau Cree of
Flying Post 0 {Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang _ 3 |Kashechewan o}
Mocrebec o} [Missansbie o
Sandy Lake 2 Moasa Cree 4
Weanusk 1 Taylowa Tagamou 0|
atal [ Tatal 8
|Keewaytinook Dkimakanak Shibogama
|Deer Lake 0} Kasabon/ka Lake 0
|Fort Severn o} Kingfisher Lake 0]
[keewaywin 1 Wapekeka ol
[macDowell Lake 0} {Wawakapewin o}
Narth Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake 1
Paplar Hill 1 Total 1
Total 2 Other a
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 36




Nishnawbe-Askl Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statlsitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Aug-17

TOTALS |
Criminal 8{Phona Call 27|Male 9|
[Famity 10{Walk In 3|female 21
|Employment 3{Emall |
icivil 4|Follow Up o}

Admin af
|Estate 2

First Nation o]

Treaty o}

|Other 3}

[Matawa | Iwindlp |
Aroland o} Bearskin Lake 0]
[Constance Lake o} [catiake of
|eabametaong 1 Kaocheching a}
|Ginoogaming o} North Caribou 2
|Homepayne o] Sachigo Lake o}
Long Lake #58 1 Siate Faolls 0
|Marten Falls 0 Whitewater Lake 0
|Neskantaga [ Total 2
Nibinamik | Wabun

Wehequle 1 Beaverhouse 1]
Tatal 3 Brupswick House 1
JIENA Chapleau |
{itchenuhmaykaos! 4 Matachewan 1
Lac Seu! 1 Mattagami 2
Muskrat Dam 0} Wahgoshig 1
Pianglkum o} Total 6
Whitesand 9| Mushkegowu

Total 5 Attawapiskat 2
{indepandants Chapleau Cree i |
{Flying Past o Fort Albany 3}
Mishkeegogantang 1 Kashechewan of
Mocrebec 0] Missanabie 0]
Sandy Lake 2 Moosa Cree 3
Weenusk 0 Taykws Tagamou 1
Total 3 Tatal 9
{Keawaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake (1] ¥asabonika Lake (4] |
IFort Sevem 0 Kingfisher Lake o}
[Keewaywin fil} Wapekeka o]
{MacDoweli Laka of Wawakapewin o}
[Narth Spirit Lake 0 {Wunnumin Lake 0f
{eoptar Hill i} Tatal o}
Total o |other 2

TOTAL CUENTS ASSISTED = 30




Nishnawbue-Aski Lagal Servicas Corporstion
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse) Statisitles

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyar
Sep-17

TOTALS

|Criminal giPhone Call 37{Male 15
fFamily 22|Walk In 8|Female 30
|Employment 1[Email o]

Civil 7|Follow Up o]

Admin o]

Estate 3]
|First Nation 3

Treaty [

Other [}
|Matawa |windigo

Aroland 0 |Bearskin Lake 1
|Constance take 1 [cat Lake of
[Eabametoong 5 Koocheching of
Glnoogaming Of North Carlbou 2
[Harnepayne o Sachigo Lake 0
Long Lake #58 4 Slate Falls 4]
Marten Falls 0] |whitewatar Lake o
[Neskantaga 0} Total a|
Nibinamik | Wabun

Webequin 2 Beaveshouse 0
Total 12 [Brunswick House 1
IFNA Chapleau 0
[iitchenuhmaykaosl 1| Matachewan o
Lac Seul 5 Mattagaml 2
Muskrat Dam o Wahgashig 0
Plkanglkum of Tatal 3
|Whitesand o} [Mushkegowu

Tatal Attawaplskat 3
Independants {Chapleau Cree o}
{Flying Post [} [Fort Albany 3
Mishkeegogamang 1 [xashechewan [
Mocrebec of [Missanable 0
Sandy Lake 2 [Moose Cree 4
[Weenusk p} ykwa Tagamou 0
Total 4 Total 10
Keewaytinock Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 1 Kasabonlka Lake 0}
Fort Severn 0| !ﬂgl‘lshur Lake o]
Keewaywin 3| Wapekeka o
|MacDowell Lake o] Wawakagawin ol
[North Spisit Lake 1] Wunnumin Lake ]|
Poplar HIll | Total 0
Total 5 Other 1

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =45




Nishnawbe-Askd Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontarlo-Duty Counse! Statisitics
Thunder Bay Advice Lowyer
Det-17
ITOTALS
Criminal 13|Phone Call 23|Mala 9
[Family 7Iwalk In &|Female 20}
Employment 2|Email of
Chvil 3[Follow Up o}
Admin 0}
|Estate 2}
[First Nation of
Treaty of
{Other 2]
[Matawa ] {Windigo
Aroland o) {Bearskin Lake 1
|Constanca Lake o} |cat Lake 2
Eabameloong 3| [Koocheching o}
Gincogaming ol North Caribou 2
Homepayne OI Sachiga Lake 1
Mun 158 a Slate Falls af
Marten falls | Whitewater Lake o
Neskantags o} Total 3
|NIbinamik o} Wabun
Webequle 3| Beaverhouse of
Total 6 Brunswick House o
(FNA Chapleay of
Kitchenuhmaykoost o Matachewan 0
|Lac Sewd 1 Mattagami 1
Muskrat Dam 1 Wahgoshig 0
|Pikanglkum 1 Tota) 1
Whitesand 0] Mushkegowu
Tatal 3 iAttawaplskat 3
independants Chapleau Cree 0
Flying Past 0] [Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang 1 Kashechewan 0]
Mocrebec 0 [Missanable (1]
Sandy Lake 4 Moosg Cree 0f
Weenusk 0 Yaykwa Tagamou D
Total 5 Total 5
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Deer Lake 0 |xasabonlka Eake ]|
{Fort Sevem 1 Kingficher Lake 2
{Keewaywin of Wapekeka o]
{MacDowell Lake of Wawakapewin o
INnnh Spirit Lake 0 Wunnumin Lake 1]
Poplar Hill a Tatal 2
Total 1 |other o}
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 29




Nishnawba-Asld Legal Services Corporation
Lagal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Nowv-17

TOTALS |
Criminal 10|Phone Call a6lMale 20|
Family 25|Walk In 13|Famale 29|
Employment 3|Emall o]

Chil 4jFoliow Up o]

Admin [1]]

Estata 6
{Flrst Natlon 1

Treaty 0
{other 0|

Matawa [Windigo

Aroland [ |8earskin Lake 3
Constance Laka i Cat Lake 2
Eabametoong _ 3 Koacheching (]|
Ginoogaming 1 North Caribou o]
[Homepayne of Sachigo Luke 1
Long Lake #58 1 Slate Falls 1
Marten Falls 3] Iwhitewatar Lake o}
[Naskantaga o Total 7
[Ninamik 4 Wabun

Webequie o Beaverhouse 0
Total 13| Brunswick House 1
IFNA Chapleau o]
|Kitchenuhmaykoasl 2 Matachewan 1
Lac: Saul 3 [Mattagami o}
Muskrat Dam 1 Wahgoshig [
Pikangikum 1 Tatal 2|
Whitesand o] Mushkegowts

Total 7 Attawaplskat 7
independants Chapleau Cree V]
[Flying Past of [Fort Albany 1
[Mishkeegogamang o [kashechawan 2|
Moecrebec o] |Missanabie of
Sandy Lake 2| [Moose Cree o}
Waenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou o}

atal 3 Total 10

Keewaytinook Okimalanak Shibogama

Deer take 1 |Kasabanika Lake of
Fort Severn 1 Kingfisher Lake 0
Keewaywin 1]} Wapsakeka 3
MacDowell Lake af 'Wawakapewin o
North Spirit Lake 0} Wunnumin Lake o}
{Poplar HI o) Total 3|
Total 2 ~ |other 2

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =49




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsal Statisities
Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Dec-17
|FOTALS
Criminal 14]Phane Call 17|Male 11
Family 13|Walk In 15|Female 25]
Employment oJEmail ol
lawat ; 2|Follow Up o}
Admin of
|Estate S
|First Nation o
Treaty o}
[Other 2
Matawa I_wﬂn
Aroland 1 Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake of [cat Lake 0
[Eabametoong 4} [koocheching 0
|Gincogaming of [North Carlbou 3
|Hnm_e_Eyne 0| Sachigo Lake &
Long Lake 458 a Slate Falls 0
IMarten Falis 0] |Whitewater Lake o
Neskantaga 0 Total 10}
Nibinamik 2 Wabun
'Wd:eql.ﬂa 1] Beaverhouse 0f
Tatal 7 Brunswick House of
IFNA Chapleau of
Kitchenuhmaykoosi o] Matachewan o}
{Lac Seul o Mattagami ol
{Muskrat Dam ol [wahgoshig a
{Pikanglkum o} Total of
[Whitesand o] Mushkegowu
Total 0 Attawapiskat 1
|independants Chapleau Cree of
Iﬁ_mg Post 0| Fort Alhany 1
Mishkeagogamang 5 Kashechewan 2
[Mocrabec o Missanahle 0
Sandy Lake 0 Moose Crea 1]
|wWeenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou 1
Total 6 Total 5
|Keewaytinook Oldmakanak Shibogama
|peer Lake 2 Kasabonika Lake i)
[Fort Severn 3 Kingfisher Lake 0l
Ikeewaywin 1 Wapekeka o}
MacDowell Laka o} Wawakapawin o
North Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake o}
Poplar Hill ol Total ol
Total 6 |other 2
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 36




Nishnawhe-Ask Legal Services Corporation
tegal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Jan-18

[taTats |
ICriminal 12|Phone Call 37|Male 18]
Famlly 16|Walk In 12|Famata 31
Employment 6]Emall of

Civil 5]Follow Up o|

Admin of

Estate 2|

First Natlon 1

Treaty 0}
|Other 7|
[Matawa Windigo

Aroiand 1 Bearskin Lake 2
|Constance Lake S [Cat Lake o]
|Eabametoong 3 [ooeheching ol
IGInoanmlng 3 [Narth Caribou ol
Hormepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 1
Long Lake 858 3 Slate Falls 0]
Marten Falls 4 [Whitewater Lake o}
[Neskantags 3 Total 3]
|mibivamik 1 Jwabun

[webegqule 2 {Beaverhouse o]
Total 5 Brunswick House of
JiFNA Chapleau of
hatchenuhmaykoos! 1 Jmatachewan o]
|Lac Seul 4 [Mattagami o}
[Muskrat Dam 1 [Wahgoshig o}
|Pikangikum 1 Total 0
Iwhitesand o} Mushkegowu

Total 7 Attawapiskat o}
independants Chaplaau Crae of
Flying Post 1 Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang 2 Kashechewan o
Mocrahec 0 Missanabie 0}
Sandy Lake 0} Maose Cree 1
Weanusk of Taykwa Tagamou [
Total 3 Total 3
|Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 1 |Kasabonlka Lake |
Fort Severn 1 {Kingfisher Lake 1
Keawaywin o} Wapekela o}
|MacDowell Lake 0 Wawakapeawin 0
{North Spirit Lake 0 [Wunnumin Lake 2
[roptar Hitt of Total 3
Tatal 2 Other 3

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 45




Nishnawbe-Asld Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse! Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Feb-18

{TOTALS N

Criminal 14|Phone Call 28Male 14
Family 13|walk In 9fFemale 23
Employment 3|Email of

avll 3[Fallow Up o}

Admin 0]

Estate 3

First Natlon of

Traaty of

Othar 1]
[Matawa | [windigo

Aroland 2l Bearskin Lake o}
Constance Lake 4 |Cat Lake 0]
Eabametoo: 2 Koacheching o
Ginoogaming 1 Narth Caribou 1
Hormepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 0
Long Lake #58 2 State Falis o}
Marten Falls 1 Whitewater Lake _of
Neaslantaga 0} Total 1
Niblnamik o] Wabun

Websquie 1 |seaverhause o}
Total 14 1Brunswick House of
IFNA Chapleau o]
Kitchenuhmaykoaosl Matachewan 2
Lac Saul 1 |Mattagami 4
|Muskrat Dam 1 |Wahgoshig 0
[Pikanglkum o} Tota 6
[Whitesand 0 Mushkegowu

Tatal 2 Attawapisial 0
Independants |Chapleau Eree o}
Flylng Post 0 Fort Albany o]
|Mishkeegogamang 1 Kashechewan 2
Mocrebec ol jMissanabije 0
Sandy Lake 6] Mouse Cree 2
Weenusk o} Taykwa Tagamoy 0
Total 7 Tota! 4
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
jDeer Lake 2 {Kasabonika Lake 0
[Fort Severn o Ki er Laka of
[Keewaywin o| Wapekeka 0
MacDowall Lake o} Wawalapewin 1
North Spirit Lake of Wunnumin Lake 0
Poplar HHl ol Total 1
Tatal 2 Other 0
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 37




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Sesvices Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawysar
Mar-18

TOTALS i
Criminal 7|Phona Calt 20Mala 12
Family 11|WalkIn 13|Female 21
Employment 2[Emalt of

Qult 10{Fallow Up 0|

Admin o

Estate o}
[First Nation D

Traaty 6] |

Other 3]

Matawa | |windigo

Arcland 0 Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 1 Cat Lake 0
Eabametoang 5 Koocheching o]
[Gincogaming 1 North Carlbou o]
Hormepayne ol Sachlgo Lake of
Long Lake #58 o] Slate Falls of
|Marten Falis 2| Whitswater Lake of
[Neskantaga 2| Total 1
Nibinamik 1 Wabun

Webequle El Beavarhouse of
Total 15 Brunswick House o
IFNA Chapleau o]

Kitchenuhmaykoosi 1 Matachewan 1
[Lac 500t of Mattagami 0
[Muskrat Dam o] Wahgoshig 0
[Pikanglkum o] Total 1
Whitesand o} |

Total 1 Attawapiskat |
|independants {Chapleau Cree a|
Flying Post ]| JFart Albany ol
IMlshkeagogamang 1 {Kashechawan al
[Mocrebac al Missanable o
Sandy Lake 2 Muaose Cree 2
Weenusk [} Taykwa Tagamou

Total 3 Total 3
|Keewaytinock Okimakanak Shibogama

|Daer Lake 2 Kasabonika take of
[Fort Severn 2 I__Iﬂg!fjsher Lake o]
|[Keewaywin 0 Wapekeka o}
{MacDowell Lake o} Wawakapewin o
{North Spirit Lake o} Wunnumin Lake 1
[Poplar Hil ol Total 1

Total 4 Other 2

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 31




Talking Together Program - Annual Report 2017-18

This year the Talking Together Program has been productive and continues providing Aboriginal
Alternative Dispute Resolution in Child Welfare in the Treaty #9 territory.

Highlights and Updates

This past year the office had been reconfigured to accommodate another station to allow for another
space at the 109 Mission Road location which was for TTP administration support. It currently houses
the manager, two facilitators, one program assistant/coordinator where job duties now consist of taking
on more coordination of referrals, Circles and client files with facilitators. Included in office space are
two finance positions. As for program facilitators they are located in Thunder Bay, Pickle Lake, Timmins
and North Bay (CCCN project) and a Moose Factory/Moosonee which is housed out of the Timmins
office. Currently, we are in process of hiring a Timmins & area facilitator that is now vacant.

One of the initiatives TTP worked on this past year was trying to expand the program. We developed
and submitted a couple of proposals, one to the Ministry of Children and Youth Services $384k and one
to Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada for $774k to hire more facilitators and
administrative support to address the carryover referrals in the program and to continue to reach
families who are in need of AADR in the Treaty#9 area on and off reserve. The proposals also include
capacity building in each area and work with other organizations i.e. Victim Witness Services, Shelters,
Hospitals, Treatment Centers...etc. One of the main targets of the proposals was to address additional
workers in the coastal communities to address the high number of referrals. In addition to the above we
hoped to develop a plan that entailed mediation services along with AADR. A conference call took place
with the INAC Social Program Supervisor Phil Digby who addressed the cost sharing formula 1965 Child
Welfare Agreement where INAC reimburses the Province of Ontario for the cost of delivering family
services to First Nation children and families on-reserve. He also addressed the NAN study- Remoteness
Factor, INAC capped budget and the inability to fund us due to the capped budget. Digby did offer
support in connecting with MCYS and pushing funding support for our proposal, moral support and
would forward info to our supervisor Scott Abick.

As a follow up to previous meetings with Marion Jocko OCL-Office of the Children’s Lawyer, Deputy
Grand Chief Anna Betty Achineepineskum and Carolyn Leach OCL counsel, Talking Together has worked
diligently to send OCL notice forms out when there is a need for legal representation for a child where a
prescribed method of ADR is proposed. The Children’s lawyer may provide legal representation to the
child, if appropriate, in resolving issues relating to a child or a plan for the child’s care. With the referral
form update that includes the OCL the facilitators now actively ensure that the OCL is involved in the
process.

Cynthia Wesley-Esquimaux 1** Indigenous Chair on Truth and Reconciliation on behalf of Lakehead
University Thunder Bay and Orillia campus participated in one of our Talking Together mock Circles.
Facilitator Heather Napash from the Thunder Bay office led and facilitated very well. It gave Cynthia and



NALSC staff the opportunity to learn about the Circle process and how it could be utilized by families,
agencies, organizations and communities.

Talking Together Program staff participated in a Residential Program: Beauty for Ashes designed to
educate and train individuals on how to interact, work and respond to those whose lives have been
impacted by trauma, domestic violence, abuse & neglect. It built on effective communication skills and
staff joined others in a healing journey by exploring stories and events that touched their lives. Topics
were presented through large group training and explored in a small group setting. This program was
instrumental in strengthening staff morale, aftercare, debriefing and building on skills needed when
working with clients and each other.

We had the opportunity to have a joint presentation with Sam Wesley Regional Coordinator Ininiwak E
Wichihitochik Victim Services and other staff on a presentation that was developed via Mamowihitowin
of the Omushkegowuk, Resolution No. 2016-09-15. Support for Nishnawbe Aski Nation Legal Services
Talking Together Program. We had 12-15 participants with most coming from the coastal communities.
We also had a strategic planning session in the afternoon on Talking Together and the Victim Witness
Program when being utilized in the communities. It was a great start to a new relationship in capacity
building.

TTP had submitted a couple of proposals, one to the Ministry of Children and Youth Services $384k. We
received one time funding of $64,000 and $64,800 which was not near what we proposed but this new
funding was used to hire two facilitators, one in the James Bay area, and one in the Sioux Lookout area
and one administrative support staff in the Thunder Bay office up to March 2018. To date we have
relieved the above positions due to not receiving same funding.

A presentation of the Talking Together Program to Deputy Grand Chief Anna Betty Achneepineskum,
ADM David Mitchell Youth Justice Services Division and NAN Chief's Committee on Child and Youth was
held in Toronto. Doug provided participants with a brief recap of ADR and the use of the aboriginal
Talking Together Program when dealing with aboriginal child welfare matters. He also provided
participants with Program packages and information including a draft yearly report that was completed
by the TTP manager.

Other inquiries during this meeting were around participants and the issue of domestic issues families
are facing. In response, Doug stated that we at Talking Together are trained in ADR and specialize in
providing a level of safety for participants that experience issues of domestic violence. Safety is very
paramount in the delivery of the talking together circles, in that it is the role of the facilitator to create a
safety plan and have this plan shared with all participants. Facilitator will never subject victims of
domestic violence, to be placed in front of their perpetrators. Facilitators don’t have control over what
happens outside of the facility where circle is being conducted, thus the need for safety planning.

Next step include setting up community events with each community to knowledge share the talking
together program and its’ benefits for our children and families and to extend an invite to First Nation
chief and council to book presentation. And to remain in contact with NAN DGC Anna Betty
Achneepineskum and Bobby Narcisse Health and Child Welfare office and to meet regarding existing



declaration seek out additions or changes to include band consultations. All participants had good
qguestions and all were receptive to the presentation and question period.

Stephanie Morningstar and Jim Doxtator from Six Nations provided IDR training to our staff in July 2017.
We were one of their focus groups when developing this curriculum for MCYS in the previous year and
returned with a developed product that entailed nine modules. Module One Historical Factors, Module
Two Ethno-stress, Module Three Role of Personal Healing, Module Four Inherent Rights & Cultural
Foundations, Module Five Cultural Foundations Healthy Families & Restoring Healthy Spirits, Module
Six Indigenous Philosophy & Dispute Resolution, Module Seven Indigenous Dispute Resolution (IDR),
Module Eight Indigenous Dispute Resolution Cultural Principles and Module Nine Family Circles &
Mainstream Alternative Dispute Resolution. Overall TTP staff enjoyed the community based content.
To date we are still waiting for the final developed copy.

Blessing of the NALSC pipe took place outdoor at Mary Bird’s residence followed by a feast with NALSC
staff. TTP did a Wawatay radio segment where | presented the Talking Together Program to our NAN
listeners.

Talking Together assisted Red Wolf Mediation in organizing a 4 day First Nation Intermediate Mediation-
Negotiation Training where TTP & NALSC staff successfully received participation certificates.

TTP also had an in-person Advisory Committee meeting in Thunder Bay where representatives from
each of the above Child and Family Service providers and elders came together to the address and
strategize supports for the program including some discussions around changes to the new CFSA.
Specifically, raising the age of protection of children from 16-18 years of age, increasing access to
protection services to these vulnerable youth; focusing on early intervention by providing support
services to assist children and families to remain together, whenever possible; providing culturally
appropriate services for children involved in child welfare, with special recognition of the role of the
First Nation, Inuit and Metis communities in child welfare proceedings; increasing the Ontario
government oversight of the local service providers, including child welfare agencies.

Derek and | met with a number of Aboriginal mandated Child and Family Service providers, they include
Payukotayno CFS, Kunuwanimano CFS, Tikinagan CFS and Dilico Anishinabek Family Care. Healthy conversations
took place in regard to our protocol, strategies and continued collaboration including Payukotayno charter service.
Our staff can now travel on their charter at a reduced cost to NALSC when doing Circles in the coastal
communities. There was also some discussion about the new changes to the Child, Youth and Family Services Act,
2017 (CYFSA) which will change the way they support young people in Ontario.

The CYFSA received Royal Assent on June 1, 2017. It is expected to be proclaimed into force in April 2018. Once
proclaimed, the CYFSA will replace the Child and Family Services Act (CFSA), the existing legislation that has been in
place for over three decades. The new Act is to provide a modern, child- and youth-centred legislative framework
to strengthen services and help better protect and care for Ontario’s most vulnerable young people.

Items include; Personal information and privacy, Children and young persons’ rights, Child protection,
Youth justice, Residential licensing, First Nations, Inuit, Métis-specific regulations, Adoption and
adoption licensing, others (i.e. related to lead agencies in the child and youth mental health system)



Additional regulatory proposals related to residential licensing, police record checks and serious
occurrence reporting are in development and are expected to be posted in a second phase (expected
late summer/early fall 2018).

The NALSC management retreat in Winnipeg was very productive and focus driven with Stan Wesley as
the facilitator. We were able to address a number of organizational strategies creatively which also
continued into our NALSC staff training in December. The team building exercises were excellent and all
staff were engaged throughout training.

The Talking Together Program has gone through a number of good changes this past year. Overall, the
Program continues to be busy with referrals, proposals and service delivery to the Treaty #9 members
off and on reserve.

Activity Overview

Meetings

TTP Staff (7), Advisory Committee (3), Management (12), NALSC Board (4), Community Counselling of North Bay
(5) Office of the Children’s Lawyer (3), Kunuwanimano CFS, Dilico Anishinabek Family Care, Kunuwanimano CFS,
Children's Aid Society Nipissing/Parry Sound, Child Protection, Community Info Session, TTP Interviews,
Independent Police Oversight, Family Court, Advance Court, Southeast CFS, Office & All Staff Meetings

Presentation, Training and Workshops

DGC Anna Betty Achineepineskum & Youth Justice Division, Dilico Treatment Center, Student Orientation DFC,
Missinabie Cree, NAN Student Orientation Timmins, Muskrat Dam FN, Public Consultation-Tbay Carding, Meno Ya
Win Health Centre, Queen Elizabeth High School, North East Timmins, Moose Factory, By-law Conference, Pelican
Falls, Confederation College, Indigenous Peoples’s , Beauty from Ashes Residential Program, TTP & Victim Witness
Mushkegowuk, Indigenous Dispute Resolution Curriculum, Reclaiming Youth at Risk, Wawatay Radio, Healing
Trauma & PTSD, Red Wolf Mediation, Dokis FN —CCCN, Kewaytinook Legal Aid, Henvy Inlet FN-CCCN, Moosenee
Booth, Lateral Violence, Four Colours Reconciliation & Wausaksing FN-CCCN



Talking Together Program Statistical Report April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

Talking # Open New # of # of # of Cases # of # of # of Circle # of
Together Files Client Cases Circles where Children Families Participants J Participant
Program Carried Files on Held Agreement [ who are Involved Surveys
Service Forward Opened Wait during reached the focus Completed
Area at April During List at the during the of Talking and
1/17 the Year end of Year Talking Circle Returned
Fiscal Together
Year Circle
James Bay J 20 20 22 30 13 120 40 150 66
Timmins 13 19 20 23 8 73 32 158 96
Sioux 13 33 23 41 28 97 46 168 43
Lookout
Thunder 22 33 36 32 16 106 55 146 84
Bay
Total 68 105 101 126 65 396 173 622 289




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Talking Together Program
Participant Satisfaction Surveys April 2017 - March 2018

A total of 289 surveys were completed by circle participants.
Did you understand why the Circle was convened?

Yes - 225 No-1 Somewhat -5 Not Selected - 8
What was your role in the circle?
CAS Representative 37 Parent 69 Family Support 31 Family Service Worker 23
Lawyer 4 Extended Family 17 Community Resourcel7 Counsellor 9
Other 13 Band Council Rep 9 Elder 23
Please indicate the extent to which you believe the circle was helpful to YOU
Very Helpful 143 Helpful 113 Not very helpful 2
Please indicate the extent to which you believe the circle was helpful to OTHERS
Very Helpful 145 Helpful 120 Not Very Helpful 1

Please indicate the extent to which you think the Circle Facilitator was prepared for the circle
Very Well Prepared 170 Prepared 87 Not Well Prepared 2
Please indicate the extent to which you think the Circle Facilitator remained neutral throughout the process
Very Neutral 175 Neutral 81 Not Very Neutral 1
How likely is it that you would recommend the circle process to someone else who was in need of an alternative
dispute resolution?
Very Likely 197 Likely 65Not Very Likely 4

Some of the Comments/Feedback

e  Positive outcome, very helpful to reunification process.

e  Where was the FN involvement?

e  Circle was very good, and will hopefully have a positive impact on family. Thank you.

e  Positive outcome, very helpful to reunification process.

e The circle is very effective and evidence based to help the family move along in their healing.
Meegwetch.

e | recommend circles for families to strengthen and work on their healing journey.

e Both parents need to be in the circle.

e | find the circles are very effective. | agree that agreement or plans of action are put on paper to ensure
follow up and consistency. Meegwetch.

e Focused on issue to be addressed, able to reinforce reasons and plan.

e Have a translator present along with a grandmother.

e Cannot think of anything as they covered what is required.

e  Offer it more to everyone in everyday struggles drugs and alcohol

e  Everything was perfect, very very helpful.

e Have thecircles in homes where it’s a safe environment.

e Circles are very effective. Keep doing the great work NAN staff!!! ©

e Glad | came to this Talking Circle, it was very helpful. Very impressed.

e  Confirm TTC date, time, place to all participants the day before.

o | feel like the TTC was very helpful on moving to resolving my issue. It allowed everyone to express their
concerns. It made me feel | had more of a ‘voice’ on wanting to move on with my issue.

e Talking Circle felt like a healing circle. Glad to have all the support from the organizations. Realized there
is a lot of help out there. I'm very pleased and satisfied.

e Amazing process for families. Presentations for communities to know more about this wonderful
restorative resource event at the school and after hours.

e  Encouraging, promising, good for now, just my opinion. See how it evolves as time goes on.

e | was very happy with the circle we had. I’'m also glad with what we accomplished. Thank you.

e Parents deserve a change to get their children.

e More talking from everybody is needed for things to work out and for better results for all parties




involved.
e Lawyers and agency supervisors should be present in person rather than conference calls.
e  More known-so others are aware of service/program.
e Very helpful. Nice to bring everyone together. Great use of traditional practices.
e The Circle was fantastic — they should happen more often.
e Very pleased with the circle. We got a lot accomplished this evening.

TALKING TOGETHER PROGRAM-COMMUNITY VISIT/EVENT/PRESENTATIONS EVALUATIONS-APRIL 1,
2017 TO MARCH 31, 2018
Participants are surveyed at community visits and presentations — Seventy One (71) surveys were completed and returned, and

the following are the responses and comments:

RATE FROM 1-5(1=POOR/5=EXCELLENT) 1 2 3 4 5
The overall quality of the presentation was good 0 0 0 10 61
How likely are you to use the information you 3 3 5 19 41
learned?

How useful were the hand-outs? 0 2 4 14 50
The meeting room was appropriate 1 0 0 8 62
What is your overall satisfaction of this session? 1 0 2 7 61
Please rate the overall coordination of the event 0 0 1 20 45

Some of the Comments/Feedback

o I’'m taking this back home to share.

o Presenter was very clear, good understanding of his role. Very good!

0 Good to hear that ADR is used with families. | hope the mediation efforts at the corporate level of Tikinagan and Dilico is
successful.

o Very good information about the process of circles and the impacts for participants. | would like to hear more about how to
share information with individuals ie; ‘how to’ make a referral.

o Great program. Our agency utilizes however we struggle with the vacancy.

o Very good explanation how the process and need for careful planning. Cultural and language teachings should be basic, the
foundation be the way to rebuild families, also ceremony equally important. Know our history and our rights as indigenous
people, treaties.

o Enjoyed the interaction with the group. All questions were answered. Glad to see the progress that has been made since the
1990’s.

o All information was great. | would like to have more support and reiteration of full jurisdiction over FN children with
respective child’s FN meaning the FN has full jurisdiction over the sacred responsibility of children.

o | liked that facilitators were knowledgeable in the material and did not just read the powerpoint. Excellent.

o. Some of the staff for Payukotayno were unaware of the procedures to ADR? Good insight for them also.

o | liked the way the facilitator allowed the group to participate in the discussions and yet complete the powerpoint at the same
time. Lunch was good.

o | appreciated that the presenter could draw on years of experience; this made me feel more confident in the information he
was providing.

o The presenter was a very good speak and held my attention very well. Good job!!




R] and CYJP Annual Report 2017 - 2018

Restorative Justice and Community Justice Program:

Direction for the above mentioned program had historically come from the past and present leaders of
the NAN. At the onset of the formation of the NALSC in the early 90’s, mission and vision statements
were designed and adopted by the persons responsible for carrying out the mandate given to this very
important initiative. The mission reads “To deliver the programs and services in a culturally appropriate
manner sensitive to the unique values, customs and traditions of the Nishinawbe Aski Nation
communities” This statement has always been a guiding tool that we have used and adhered to over the
years as we have in many cases endeavoured to deliver the Restorative Justice and Youth Justice
Programs to our member communities in the NAN Territory. The “Justice System” as we know it
certainly recognizes and appreciates our involvement in processing legal matters in the courts that are
held in the NAN communities by utilizing the circle process to restore relationships and harmony to
community living.

| am pleased to report to the Chiefs in assembly that we have once again been successful in giving much
needed support and assistance to persons in trouble with the law and also to those who have been
victimized by the negative behaviours of offenders. The restorative justice program is designed to be
effectively delivered in both languages, our aboriginal (dialects) language and in English the majority of
our RJ facilitators have the ability to communicate in both. Where translation and interpretation is
required for the circle process the communities served can be counted on for to provide this function.
The annual program client statistical report accompanies this report for all to review and comment on.

Staffing of the programs have been at full complement at every point in time throughout the year and
where there have been staff turnovers we have been successful in filling vacancies in fairly short order
so as not to compromise service delivery. At present we have a combined RJ and CYJP staff complement
of twelve workers in both programs. With the support of the Ministry of Children and Youth Services
(MCYS) we have been able to create additional positions in the Youth Justice Program by adding youth
intervention resources which we refer to as hybrid positions. Hybrid positions provide both youth justice
and youth intervention services. In our attempted to stretch the funded program dollar this has proven
to be successful as it provides more program coverage to some NAN communities. The management
personnel of the NALSC continue to scan government program ministries for available funding to use for
expansion of the alternative dispute programs.

Band Bylaw

The band by-law program is a relatively new program which will serve to help Nishinawbe Aski Nation
First Nations develop and enforce laws that respond to the abuse of intoxicants in their communities, to
improve the safety and well — being of their members. It has been our experience that the majority of
First Nations in the NAN territory have had problems in gaining support from the Justice system for to
address the problems created by the abusive use of intoxicants in their communities. This program can
access and provide informational sources on what needs to be done to make an intoxicant bylaw
enforceable so that your First Nation can understand and rely on it. This includes making sure the law is



properly passed and made public, and that your community has the resources and support it needs to
put it into action. To date we have one staff member who hails from Bearskin Lake First Nation and we
are in the process of planning for to increase the number of RJ bylaw workers that will give support to
First Nation communities in the next year. Bearskin Lake First Nation has begun to implement their
bylaw system successfully and we extend the hand of support to assist in the search of additional
funding to keep this project alive. Client statistics for this program are combined with the RJ statistics
report.

Youth Intervention Program

MCYS currently funds eleven youth intervention program positions in a number of NAN communities.
The following are the communities that have the YI program based in their community: Pikangikum,
Sandy Lake, Kasabonika, Attawapiskat, Fort Albany, Wapekeka, Kashechewan and Independent KI.

A notable component of the MCYS mandate for this program is that it serves to provide reintegration
programs and supports for youth being released from custodial sentences into the community. We have
experienced a considerable decline in referrals from probation officers throughout the NAN
communities and in place of this trend NALSC has introduced a prevention program component. Our
youth intervention staffs organize community and social development activities for the youth in the
form of recreation, domestic and cultural land based activities. Community people resources such as
elders, land based harvesters and sport enthusiasts are requested to assist wherever they can. This
serves to keep youth busy with positive activities thereby making a contribution to the overall
development of their communities. Youth intervention client statistics accompany this report.

Victim Witness Liaison

Our Victim Witness Liaison program has continued to flourish and we are proud to announce we have
doubled our numbers and we now currently have a complement of 6 frontline VWL Workers, 1
Supervisor and 1Director of Services; therefore we are now a VWL Team consisting of 8 servicing
Nishinawbe Aski Nation. Current frontline workers include: VWL West Wilma C., VWL Sioux Lookout
Marie R., VWL Red Lake Denise S., and our newest additions: VWL Central Jocelynn R., VWL Sandy Lake
Steffany F., and VWL East Amber E. Our VWL program has been very busy in training our new workers
and setting up their respective office spaces. We are also currently advertising for an additional 3 VWL
Workers for Pikangikum First Nation, Deer Lake First Nation and an additional worker in Timmins.
Program highlight: NALSC and Nishnawbe Aski Aski Police Services (NAPS) discussed the referral process
and all referrals from NAPS detachments will be sent directly via email once a NAN wide directive is sent
to all NAPS officers and NAPS detachments. It is predicted our client caseloads will increase significantly
with this influx of direct referrals. Here we grow again.... Meegwetch

Report submitted by RJ and YJ Program Managers

Joyce Crawford and Vernon Morris



Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Restorative Justice - Summary Statistics - All Programs

Start Date: 2017-04-01
End Date: 2018-03-31

Referrals by Referral Source:

Crown 219
Lawyer 66
Legal Aid 5
Police 13
Probation 12
Community 39
Schools 13
NAPS 31
CcLw 7
RI 9
Yl 7
Self 71
Other 22

Total Referrals: 514

Total Files Opened/Closed/Carried Forward:

Carried Forward: 699
+ Opened: 514
- Closed: 672



Total Open Files (at end of period):

Files Opened by Program:
RJ
Yl
YJ

Total Files Opened

Files Closed by Outcome:
Charges Stayed
Charges Withdrawn

Community Conflict Resolved

Community Diversion Incomplete

Conditional Discharge
Prevention
Probation Complete

Referred Back to Court

Total Files Closed

Files Opened by Charge (Pre/Post):

Pre-charge
Post-charge
Probation

Prevention

17
314

30

11

10
212



Total Cases:

Circle Types:
Initial
Followup

Healing

Total Circles:

Court Outcomes:
Remanded

Charges Withdrawn
Charges Transferred
Charges Stayed
Proceed with Charges
Adjourned

Bench Warrant

Court Cancelled
Other

Total Court Sessions:

Offenders by First Nation:

Attawapiskat
Bearskin Lake
Beaverhouse
Brunswick House
Cat Lake
Chapleau Ojibwe
Constance Lake
Deer Lake

Eabametoong

514

146
258

50
15

10

15

20
42



Fort Albany 7
Fort Severn 1
Kasabonika 15
Kashechewan 46
Keewaywin
Kingfisher Lake 4
Kitchenuhmaykoosib 12
Lac Seul 5
Long Lake #58 3
Marten Falls 3
Matachewan 7
Mattagami 3
Mishkeegogamang 27
Moose Cree 24
Muskrat Dam 7
Neskantaga 1
Nibinamik 6
North Caribou Lake 21
North Spirit Lake 1
Other 10

Pikangikum 128

Poplar Hill 3
Sachigo Lake 16
Sandy Lake 35
Taykwa Tagamou 1
Wahgoshig 17
Wapekeka 7
Wawakapewin 1
Webequie 2
Wunnumin Lake 1

Total Offenders: 581



Victime Witness Liaison - Statistics 2017 - 2018

VWL Central MDK | VWL West - WC VWL SL - MR VWLRL - DS
April 2017 Total:122 Total: 0 Total: 0 Total: 17
Open:87 Open: 0 Open: 0 Open: 16
Closed:35 Closed: 0 Closed: 0 Closed: 1
May 2017 Total:134 Total: 0 Total: 0 Total: 21
Open:98 Open: 0 Open: 0 Open: 20
Closed:36 Closed: 0 Closed: 0 Closed: 1
June 2017 Total:150 Total: 187 Total: 0 Total: 36
Open:102 Open: 45 Open: 0 Open: 26
Closed:48 Closed: 142 Closed: 0 Closed: 10
July 2017 Total:156 Total: 197 Total: 0 Total: 30
Open:107 Open: 44 Open: 0 Open: 20
Closed:49 Closed: 153 Closed: 0 Closed: 10
August 2017 Total:164 Total: 204 Total: 0 Total: 23
Open:93 Open: 49 Open: 0 Open: 23
Closed:71 Closed: 155 Closed: 0 Closed:
September 2017 Total:171 Total: 209 Total: 0 Total: 35
Open:96 Open: 50 Open: 0 Open:30
Closed:75 Closed: 159 Closed: 0 Closed: 5
October 2017 Total:182 Total: 218 Total: 22 Total: 44
Open:101 Open: 59 Open: 22 Open: 39
Closed:81 Closed: 159 Closed: 0 Closed: 5
November 2017 Total:188 Total: 116 Total: 29 Total: 56
Open:90 Open: 40 Open: 27 Open: 50
Closed:98 Closed: 76 Closed: 2 Closed: 6
December 2017 Total:193 Total: 118 Total: 34 Total: 53
Open:95 Open: 36 Open: 32 Open: 53
Closed:98 Closed: 82 Closed: 2 Closed:
January 2018 Total: 101 Total: 131 Total: 47 Total: 58
Open:99 Open: 44 Open: 44 Open: 58
Closed:2 Closed: 87 Closed: 3 Closed:
February 2018 Total:103 Total: 136 Total: 70 Total: 64
Open:84 Open: 41 Open: 57 Open: 64
Closed:19 Closed: 95 Closed: 13 Closed:
March 2018 Total:111 Total: 139 Total: 81 Total: 70
Open:92 Open: 41 Open: 68 Open: 68
Closed:19 Closed: 98 Closed: 13 Closed:2
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Management‘s Responsibility

To the Board of Directors of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation:

Management is responsible for the preparalion and presentalion of the accompanying financial statements, including responsibility for
significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. This
responsibility includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the measurement of
transactions in which objective judgment is required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and faimess of the financial statements, management designs and maintains the
necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transaclions are authorized, assels
are safeqguarded and financial recards are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial statements.

The Board of Directors is composed entirely of Directors who are neither management nor employees of the Organization. The Board is
responstble for overseeing management in the performance of its financial reporling responsibilities, and for approving the financial
information included in the annual report. The Board fulfils these responsibilities by reviewing the financial information prepared by
management and discussing relevant matters with management and external auditors. The Board is also responsible for recommending
the appointment of the Organization's external auditors.

MNP LLP is appointed by the Board of Directors to audit the financial statements and repart directly to them; their report follows. The

external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both the Board and management to discuss
their audit findings, as required.

August 9, 2018

sr




Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation:

Woe have audiled tha accompanying financial statements of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at March 31, 2018, and the statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for nol-for-profit organizations, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selacted depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparalion and fair presentation of the financial stalements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting eslimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financia! statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services
Corporation as at March 31, 2018 and the resulls of its operations, and changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Other Matters

The supplementary information contained in the schedules Is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not part of the
basic audited financial statements. The informalion in the schedules was derived from the accounting records tested in forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

Thunder Bay, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
August 9, 2018 Licensed Public Accountants

1205 Ambar Drive, Suita 210, Thunder Bay, Onltario, P78 6M4, Phone: (B0T) 623-2141, 1 (B66)623-2141



Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Financial Position

As at March 31, 2018

2018 2017
Assets
Current
Cash 468,494 438,876
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 538,183 135,511
Prepaid expenses 778 724
HST receivable 376,075 201,882
1,383,530 866,993
Capital assets {Note 4) 145,156 77,368
1,528,686 944 361
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accruals (Nole 6} 588,947 283,306
Deferred revenue (Note 7) 747,716 199,777
Government remittances payable 49,423 37,030
1,386,086 520,113
Contingencies (Note 8}
Net Assets
Invested in capital assels 145,156 77,368
Unrestricted 116,303 375,403
Restricted {118,859) (28,523)
142,600 424,248
1,528,686 944 361

Director

Tha accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial stalements

1



Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2018

Restricted Unrestricted invested in 2018 2017
capltal assets
Revenue
Legal Aid Ontario 2,136,672 - - 2,136,672 2,144,196
Law Foundation of Ontario 7,960 - . 7,960 30,760
Northemn Ontario Heritage Fund 21,000 - - 21,000 -
Department of Justice 516,745 - - 516,745 498,910
Ministry of Attomey General 1,993,133 - - 1,993,133 558,807
Ministry of Children & Youth Services 1,855,888 - - 1,855,889 1,749,368
Community Counselling Centre of Nipissing 109,939 - - 109,939 107,790
Springboard 160,515 - - 160,515 120,000
Other revenue 25,508 . - 25,508 61,376
Interest income - 8,302 - 8,302 6,690
Internal management and administration fees
- 782,184 - 782,184 398,616

Add: prior year deferred revenue (Nole 7) 199,777 - - 199,777 -
Less: current year deferred revenue (Nole 7)

{747,716) - - {747,716) (94,777)
Less: repayable to funder (37,223) - - (37,223) (4.521)

Total revenue 6,242,199 790,486 - 7,032,685 5,577,215
Continued on next page

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial stalements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2018

Restricted Unrestricted Invested in 2018 2017
capital assets
Expenses
Advertising 28,448 972 - 29,420 42,594
Amoriization 72,164 - - 72,164 34,964
Annual meetings of members - 20,000 - 20,000 21,429
Bad debts - 24,118 - 24,118 -
Bank charges 2,317 1,503 - 3,820 3,508
Board of Directors - meetings 24,140 79,691 - 103,831 65,285
Community partnership 9,519 - - 9,519 11,000
Computers and equipment 75,456 53,421 - 128,877 99,411
Elder honorarium 46,787 - - 46,787 41,969
Insurance and security 14,868 1,000 - 15,868 13,538
Internal management fees 782,184 - - 782,184 398,616
Repairs and maintenance 28,417 422 - 28,839 27,750
Law Society fees 7,773 - - 7.773 12,166
Lease rentals 14,655 - - 14,655 14,254
Library 1,980 - - 1,980 5,161
Miscellaneous 5,461 47,381 - 52,842 104,575
Office supplies 206,157 37,166 - 243,323 105,899
Professional fees 27,712 24,473 - 52,245 56,087
Rent and utilities 329,485 25,767 - 355,252 316,880
Salaries and benefits 3,517,815 508,369 - 4,026,184 3,371,523
Telephone 138,318 4,549 - 142,467 133,748
Training 115,139 45,542 . 160,681 101,390
Travel 903,493 175,112 - 1,078,605 652,400
Workshops/circle expenses 52,351 500 - 52,851 41,622
6,404,699 1,049,586 - 7,454,285 5,675,769
(162,500) (259,100) - {421,600) (98,554)
Other items
Capital assets acquisitions included in
expenses 439,952 - - 139,852 77,293
Deficiency of revenue over expenses {22,548) {259,100) - {281,643) {21,261)
Net assets, beginning of year {28,523) 375,403 77,368 424,248 445,509
Change in invested in capital assets (Note 10) {67,788) - 67,788 - -
Net assets, end of year (118,859) 116,303 145,156 142,600 424,248

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2018

2018 2017
Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses {281,648) {21,261)
Amortization 72,164 \
Bad debts 24,118 -
{185,366) 13,703
Changes in working capital accounis
Accounts receivable {402,671) (6,313)
HST receivable {84,193) {71,512)
Prepaid expenses {54) 3,399
Accounts payable and accruals 306,300 (48,254}
Government remittances payable (12,385) 20,404
Deferred revenue 547,939 199,777
169,570 111,204
Investing
Purchase of capital assets {139,952) {77,293)
increase in cash resources 29,618 33,811
Cash resources, beginning of year 438,876 404,965
Cash resources, end of year 468,494 438,876

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements

4



Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018

Incorporation and nature of the organization

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (the *Organization”) was incorporated by Letters Patent dated March 31, 1990
without share capital under the Canada Corporations Act as a not-for-profit organization and thus is exempt from income
taxes under the Income Tax Act ("the Act").

The Organization was formed to plan, develop, deliver, coordinate and administer the provision of legal education and
restorative justice, for the people of the Nishnawbe-Aski Nation in a manner sensilive to and respectful of their unique
cultural heritage.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations as issued by the Accounting Standards Board in Canada using the following significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held in chartered banks and petty cash.

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contribuled capital assels are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution if fair value can be reasonably determined.

Amortization is provided using the straight-line mathod at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated
useful lives.

Years
Computer equipment d years
Computer software 1 year
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
System database software 5 years

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assels consist of capital assets. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized as described in the
applicable accounting policies.

The Organization parforms impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the camrying amount of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. The carrying
amount of a group of long-livad assets is not recoverable if the carrying amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows from their use and disposal. If the carrying amount is not recoverable, impairment is then measured as the
amount by which the asset's carrying amounl exceeds its fair value. Fair value is measured using prices for similar items.
Any impairment is included in excess of revenue over expenses for the year.

Leases

A lease that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership is classified as a capilal lease. At the inception
of a capital lease, an asset and a payment obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the lasser of the present value of
the minimum lease payments and the property’s fair market value. Assets under capital leases are amortized on a
straight-line basis, over their estimated useful lives. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and rental
payments are expensed as incurred.

An arrangement contains a lease where the arrangement conveys a right to use the underlying tangible asset, and whereby
its fulfillment is dependent on the use of the specific tangible asset. After the inception of the arrangement, a reassessment
of whather the arangement contains a lease is made only in the event that:

. there is a change in contractual terms;

. a renewal option is exercised or an exiension is agreed upon by the parties to the arrangement;

. there is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of the
specific tangible asset; or

. there is a substantial physical change to the specified tangible assel.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Revenue recognition

The Organization uses the deferral method of accounting for contributions and reports on a fund accounting basis.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the Restricted Fund in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the Unrastricted Fund when received or receivable if the
amount to be recsived can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Restricted investment income is recognized in the Restricted Fund depending on the nature of the restrictions. Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue in the Unrestricted Fund when eamed.

Fund accounting
The Organization reports using fund accounting, and maintains three funds.

The Unrestricted Fund reports the Crganization's revenue and expenses related to program delivery and administrative
activities.

The Restricted Fund reports assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related to program delivery that are funded with
restricted contributions.

Invested in capital assets reports the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related lo capital assets.
Allocation of administration and management expenses

The Organization engages in various programs. The costs of each program include the costs of personnel, insurance, rent,
utilities and other expenses thal are directly related to providing the pregram. The Organization also incurs a number of
general support expenses that are common to the administration of the Organization and each of its programs.

The Organization allocates certain of its general support expenses by idenlifying the appropriate basis of allocating each
component expense, and applies that basis consistently each year.

Contributed materials

Contributions of materials are recognized both as contributions and expenses in the statement of operations and changes in
net assets when a fair value can be reasonably estimated and when the materials are used in the normal course of the
Organization's operations and would otherwise have been purchased.

Measurement uncertainty {use of estimates)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounis of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for doubtiul accounts
is provided where considered necessary.

Amorlization is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.
Accounts payable and accruals are estimated based on historical charges for unbilled goods and services at year-end.

Deferred revenue is eslimated based on management's assessment of the unspent amount of funding received as at
year-end.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjusiments become necessary they are reported in
excess of revenue over expenses in the periods in which they become known.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)
Financial instruments

The Crganization recognizes its financial instruments when the Organization becomes party to the conlractual provisions of
the financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value, including financial assels and
liabilities originated and issued in a relaled party transaction with management. Financial assets and liabilities originated
and issued in all other related party transactions are initially measured at their carrying or exchange amount in accordance
with CPA Canada Handbook 3B40 Related Party Transactions.

At initial recognition, the Organization may imevocably elect to subsequently measure any financial instrument at fair value.
The Organization has not made such an election during the year.

The Organization subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market at fair value. Fair
value is determined by published price quotations. Investments in equity instruments not quoted in an aclive market are
subsequenlly measured al cosl less impairment. All other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured al
amortized cost.

Transaction costs and financing fees directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial
instruments subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in the excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenses for the current period. Conversely, transaction costs and financing fees are added to the carrying amount for
those financial instruments subsequently measured at amoriized cost or cost.

Accounts receivable

2018 2017
Staff receivable - 7,495
Receivable from funders 538,183 128,016
538,183 135,511
Capital assets
2018 2017
Accumuliated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
Computer equipment 204,624 142,701 61,923 27,680
Computer software 66,378 66,378 - -
Furniture and fixtures 261,631 184,436 77,195 41,497
Leasehold improvements 43,082 37,044 6,038 8,191
System database software 20,000 20,000 - -
595,715 450,559 145,156 77,368

Bank indebtedness

At March 31, 2018, the Organization had lines of credit available to it totaling $100,000 {2017 - $100,000), none of which
were drawn (2017 - BNil).




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018

Accounts payable and accruals

2018 2017
Trade payables and accruals 332,726 93,385
Amounts repayable to funders 21,041 22,794
Salaries and benefils payable 235,180 167,127
588,947 283,306

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists of unspent contributions externally restricled for delivery of various programs. Recognition of
these amounts as revenue is deferred 1o periods when the specified expenditures are made. Changes in the deferred
revenue are as follows:

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year 199,777 -
Amount received during the year 1,560,906 285,760
Less: Amount recognized as revenue during the year {1,012,967) (85,983)
Balance, end of year 747,716 199,777

Contingencies

The Organization is contingently liable to its funding agencies for any expenditures that it may have made in contravention
of the contracts/agreements with these agencies. The actual amount of the contingent liability, if any, is currently not
determinable.

The Organization has identified measurement uncertainty with respect to the classification of restricted and unrestricted net
assets arising from its accounting paolicies for the allocation of administrative and management expenses as described
above. Specifically, Legal Aid Ontario had identified $528,795 from 2014 that it believes should be reclassified from
unrestricted net assets to restricted net assets. While management disputes this assessment, the impact of the change, if
realized, would be o increase restricted net assets from a deficit of $118,859 to a surplus of $409,936 and would decrease
unrestricted net assets from a surplus of $145,156 to a deficit of $383,639. Any reclassification will be recoreded in the
period the amount becomes measurable.

The Organization has entered into a lease commitment with 757592 Ontario Inc. that expires on April 30, 2019 with
payments of $7,479 per month including HST.

The Organization has entered into a lease for a number of photocopy machines with Compugen Inc. that expires on
November 30, 2019 with payments of $1,082 per month plus HST.

The Organization has entered into a lease for a postage machine with Neopost that expires on January 31, 2021 with
quarterly costs of $1,088.

The Organization has entered into a lease for a multifunction printer with Xerox that expires on November 1, 2022 with
quarterly costs of $390,

The Organization has entered into a lease for two multifunction printers with Wells Fargo that expires on May 135, 2024 with
monthly costs of $298.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018

10.

11.

12

13.

Commitments (Continued from previous page)

The amounts payable aver the next five fiscal years related to the above leases are as follows:

2019 112,214
2020 25,618
2021 8,306
2022 5,132
2023 4,741

156,101

Change In invested in capital assets

The change in invesled in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2018 2017

Purchase of capilal assels 139,952 77,293
Amorlization expense {72,164) {34,964)
67,788 42,329

Economic dependence

The Organization's primary source of revenue is grants from various government agencies. The grant funding can be
cancelled if the Organization does not observe certain established guidelines. The Organization's ability to continue viable
operations is dependent upon maintaining its right to follow the criteria within funding guidelines. As at the date of these
financial statements, the Organization believes that it is in compliance with these guidelines.

Financial instruments

The Organization, as part of its operations, carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the
Organization is not exposed to significant interest, currency, credit, liquidity or other price risks arising from these financial
instruments except as otherwise disclosed.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.
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NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Schedule of Legal Aid Program Revenue and Expenses
For the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Unaudited

LEGAL AID GLADUE

ONTARIO CASEWORKER 2018 2017

REVENUE
Legal Aid Ontario 5 1,897,752 $ 238,920 S 2,136,672 $ 2,144,196
Other 25,508 - 25,508 19,769
Internal Management Fees e S - 185,000
Repayable to Funders - - - {764)

1,923,261 238,920 2,162,181 2,348,201
EXPENSES
Administrative - 5,711
Advertising 10,393 1,007 11,400 8,267
Annual Meeting - - - 21,429
Bank Charges 472 247 719 710
Board of Directors {378) - {378) 50,855
Computers and Equipment 22,035 3,874 25,908 23,020
£lder Honorarium 38 ag -
Insurance and Security 14,453 75 14,528 13,094
Internal Management/Overhead Fees 328,600 10,000 338,600 10,600
Janitorial 18,282 - 18,282 15,901
Law Society Fees 7,478 - 7.478 12,166
Lease Rentals 13,108 - 13,108 14,254
Library 1,980 - 1,980 5,161
Miscellaneous 1,720 - 1,720 .
Office Supplies 48,233 5,163 53,396 51,338
Professional Fees 14,649 33 14,682 25,644
Rent and Utilities 136,735 14,502 151,237 178,347
Salaries and Benefits 1,166,337 178,993 1,345,330 1,703,435
Telephone 45,745 9,742 55,487 60,553
Training 17,578 2,512 20,090 25,442
Travel 155,230 25,001 180,231 148,346
Workshops/Circles 584 76 660 2,027

2,003,234 251,263 2,254,497 2,376,300
Deficiency of Revenue over Expenses S (79,973} S (12,343) & (92,316) 5 (28,099)




NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION

Schedule of Children and Youth Program Revenue and Expenses

For the Year Ended March 31, 2018
Unaudited

COMMUNITY
TALKING YOUTH & INTEGRATION COMMUNITY
TOGETHER JUSTICE SERVICES PARTNERSHIP 2018 2017

REVENUE
Ministry of Children and Youth Sarvices $ 528,300 458532 5 758,056 ] 11,001 $ 1,855,889 $ 1,749,368
Other = - - - - 21,806
Internal Fees - - - - - -
Repayable to Funders - - - = - {2,004)

628,300 458,532 758,056 11,001 1,855,889 1,769,170
EXPENSES
Administrative - - - - - 75,519
Advertising 1,205 2,779 5,322 - 9,306 9,938
Bank Charges 247 247 247 - 741 -
Board of Directors 8,778 - - - 8,778 450
Community Partnership - - - 9,519 9,519 11,000
Computers and Equipment 7,445 - 3,520 - 11,365 5,821
Elder Honorarlum 15,505 12,515 538 - 28,558 12,247
Insurance and Security 116 75 - - 151 232
Internal Management/Overhead Fees 19,800 38,078 51,200 1,650 110,728 107,878
fanitorial 7.087 299 - - 8,086 -
Miscellaneous 367 680 2,654 - 3,701 73,243
Office Supplies 10,143 13,423 33,513 1,001 58,080 45,386
Professional Fees 2,200 2,200 2,200 - 6,600 6,642
Rent and Utilities 26,437 27,408 26,966 80,812 101,662
Salaries and Benefits 377,507 241,845 471,864 1,091,216 1,039,518
Telephone 15,218 10,358 15,712 - 41,289 .
Tralning 22,123 19,460 21,939 E 63,522 £0,333
Travel 119,963 82,455 85,762 249 298,429 193,852
Workshops/Circles 14,726 5,213 24,047 = 43,986 25,308

648,869 457,735 755,884 12,419 1,874,907 1,769,170
Excess (Deficlency) of Revenue over Expenses -] {20,569) 797 2,172 {1,418} & {19,018 5




NISHNAWBE ASI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Schedule of Other Program fevenue and Expenses

Fof the Year Ended March 31, 2018
Unaudited
COMMUNITY
COUNSELLING COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
DEPARTMENT CENTREOF LEARNING HUB LEARNING HUB ACCESS TO
OF JUSTICE NIPPISSING {WEST) {EAST) JUSTICE 3018 2017

REVENUE
Community Counselling Centre af Nippissing H - 5 19939 $ -5 - 5 - 5 109938 % 107,790
Department af Justice 516,745 - - . - 516,745 493,910
Law Foundation of Dntario - - - - 7.950 7,960 3n,760
Dperation Springboard B 5 124,482 36,033 . 160,515 120,000
Transfers o {from} Ceferred R - - s - 17,357 17,397 17,397}

516,745 109,939 124,482 36,033 25,357 812,556 740,063
EXPENSES
Administrative - . o - B - 6,233
Advertising 1,611 1,665 720 79 - 4,075 1504
Bank Charges 55 47 - - - 502 454
Board of Directors 15,740 . 0 - . 15,740 13,980
Computers and Equipment 1,003 1,706 - - - 8,709 2,427
Etder Honorarium 14,106 2,900 - = 200 17,306 3,750
Insurance and Security 75 - - - - 75 90
Internal Management/Overhead Fees 37,000 13,055 10,000 (10] 2,000 62,045 60,280
lanitorial w9 - - - - 939 1611
Dffice Supplies 5,816 1587 4,653 1,515 2427 20,707 17,565
Professional Fees 2,200 . - - - 2,200 2,200
Rent and Utilities 30,558 - 10,202 1,856 - 43616 36,222
Sataries and Benefits 291,056 69,166 71164 15,873 9,471 466,730 463,364
Telephone 13,809 244 7,341 1,417 = 22,811 17,347
Training 12,862 1,737 2,218 - - 16,827 14,241
Travel 76,514 15,550 20,456 4,140 8,826 115526 95,245
Workshops/Circles 1514 1.032 1,000 290 12 3948 3,580

515,118 109,929 127,764 36,170 22,836 811,816 740,493

Excess {Deficency) of R over E H 1,627 1 10 $ {3.282) 3 n_ s 3521 § 740  § {430




MNP

May 30, 2018

Mr. Derek Stephen

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporalion
109 Mission Road

Fort William First Nation, ON P74 1K7

Dear Mr. Stephen:

This letter will confirm the arrangements discussed with you regarding the services we will render to
Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (the "Corporation") commencing with the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2018.

Our responsibilities

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepied auditing standards.
Accordingly, we will plan and perform aur audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
financial statements taken as a whole are free of materiai misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

Our responsibilities, objective, scope, independence and the inherent limitations of an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards are detailed in Appendix A, which forms
part of our mutual understanding of the terms of this engagement.

Management's responsibilities

The operations of the Corporation are under the control of management, which has responsibility for the
accurate recording of transactions and the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. This includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of intemal control relating to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements.

Appendix B, which describes in detail management’s responsibilities with respect to this engagement,
forms part of our mutual understanding of the terms of this engagement,

Reporting

Unless unanticipated difficulties are encountered, our report will be substantially in the form illustrated in
Appendix C.

Tax services
As agreed, we will also prepare the following corporate income tax returns for the Corporation:
s Federal Corporation Income Tax Return (T2)

Canadian income and capital tax returns are generally due within six months of the Corporation's
year-end. Failure to file on a timely basis can result in penalty and interest charges.

We will prepare the corporate tax returns based on information provided by you, as well as through our
discussions with management personnel. We will not audit, review or otherwise attempt to verify the
accuracy or completeness of such information.

Praxity’ Acw ACCOUNTING > CONSULTING ) TAX
raxity :  ocorempLover 210,1205 AMBER DRIVE, THUNDER BAY ON, P78 6M4
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We believe the foregoing correctly sels forth our understanding, but if you have any questions, please let
us know. If you find the arrangements acceptable, please acknowledge your agreement to the
understanding by signing and returning the second copy of this engagement letter to us.

Itis a pleasure for us to be of service to you. We look forward to many years of association with you and
Nishnawbea-Aski Legal Services Corporation.

Yours truly,

i

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Enclosures
RESPONSE:;

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation.

Gaeptye Nirats 42

Title Date

MNP



Appendix A: Our Audit Responsibilities, Objective, Scope and Limitations

The following details our responsibilities as auditors and the objective, scope, independence and inherent
limitations of an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

Our responsibilities, objective and scope

Our audit will be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial stalements
taken as a whole are free of material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. If any of the
following matters are identified, they will be communicated to the appropriate level of management;
+ Misstatements, resulting from arror, other than immaterial misstatements;
» Fraud or any information obtained that indicates that a fraud may exist;
= Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern;
» Any evidence obtained that indicates non-compliance or possible non-compliance with laws and
regulations has occurred;
s Significant deficiencies in the design or implementation of controls to prevent and detect fraud or
misstatements; and
o Related party transactions identified that are not in the normal course of operations and that
involve significant judgments made by management concerning measurement or disclosure.

The matters communicated wili be those that we idenlify during the course of our audit. Audits do not
usually identify all maiters that may be of interest to management in discharging its responsibilities. The
type and significance of the matter to be communicated will determine the level of management to which
the communication is directed.

Furthermore, we will consider the Corporation’s controls over financial reporting for the purpose of
idenitifying types of potential misstatement, considering factors that affect the risks of material
misstatement, and determining the nature, timing and extent of auditing procedures necessary for
expressing our opinion on the financial statements,

This consideration will not be sufficient to enable us to render an opinion on the effectiveness of controls
over financial reporting nor to identify all significant deficiencies in the Corporation’s system of financial
controls.

Independence

The Rules of Professional Conduct require that we are independent when conducting this engagement.
We will communicate to the Board any relationships between the Corporation (including related entities)
and MNP LLP ("MNP") that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence.

Further, we wiil confirm in writing our independence with respect to the Corporation.

If matters should arise during this engagement that can reasonably be assumed to have impaired our
independence, we may need to withdraw from this engagement.

Audit limitations

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence regarding the amounls and disclosures
in the financial statements. This includes avaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



Appendix A: Our Audit Responsibilities, Objective, Scope and Limitations
{continued from previous page)

it is important to recognize that an auditor cannot obtain absolute assurance that material misstatements
in the financial statements will be detected because of factors such as the use of judgment, selective
testing of data, inherent limitations of controls, and the fact that much of the audit evidence available is
persuasive rather than conclusive in nature.

Furthermore, because of the nature of fraud, including attempts at concealment through collusion and
forgery, an audit designed and executed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards may not detect a material misstatement due to fraud.

While effective controls reduce the likelihood that misstatements will ocour and remain undetected, they
do not eliminate that possibility. Therefore, we cannot guarantee that fraud, misstatements and non-
compliance with laws and regulations, if present, will be detected when conducting an audit in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

The audit of the financial statements and the issuance of our audit opinion are solsly for the use of the
Cuarporation and those to whom our report is specifically addressed. We make no representations of any
kind to any third party in respect of these financial statements and we accept no responsibility for their use
by any third party. If our name is to be used in connaction with the financial statements, you will attach our
independent audit report when distributing the financial statements to third pariies.

We ask that our names be used only with our consent and that any information to which we have attached
a communication be issued with that communicalion unless otherwise agreed lo by us.

MNP



Appendix B: Management Responsibilities

During the course of our audit, you will be required to provide and make available complete information
that is relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, including:
¢ Financial records and related data;
« Copies of alt minutes of meetings of members and board of directors;
Access to personnel to whom we may direct our inquiries;
Information relating to any known or possible instances of non-compliance with laws, legislative or
regulatory requirements (including financial reporting requirements);
» Information relating to all related parties and relaied party transactions; and
» Allowing access to those within the entity from whom the auditor determines it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

Management's responsibility with respect to fraud and misstatement includes:

+ The design and implementation of controls for its prevention and detection;

¢ An assessment of the risk thai the financial statements may be materially misstaled;

» Disclosure of situations where fraud or suspecied fraud involving management, employees who
have significant rales in controls, or others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the
financial statements, have been identified or allegations have been made; and

e Communicating your belief that the effects of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements
aggregated during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we will request a letter of
representation from management at the close of our audit in order to confirm oral representations given to
us and reduce the possibility of misunderstanding concerning matters that are the subject of the
representations. These representalions are used as evidence to assist us in deriving reasonable
conclusions upon which our audit opinion is based.

If the Corporation plans any reproduction or publication of our report, or a portion thereof, printer's proofs
of the complete documents should be submitied to us in sufficient time for our review, prior to making
such documents publicly available. It will also be necessary for you to furnish us with a copy of the printed
reporl. Further, it is agreed that in any electronic distribution, for example on Nishnawbe-Aski Legal
Services Carporation's website, management is solely responsible for the accurate and complete
reproduction of our report and the subject matter on which we reported, and for informing us of any
subsequent changes to such documenls. However, we are responsible to read the documents to ensure
accuracy, and consider the appropriateness of other information accompanying the audited financial
statements, upon initial posting.



Appendix C: lllustrative Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018, and the statements of operations
and changes in net assels and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Managemenl's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managemeni is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statemenis In
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from malerial misstatemnent, whether due lo fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibiiily

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stalements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant lo the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's inlernal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statemenis present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation as at March 31, 2018 and lhe results of its operations and
changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Other Malter

The supplementary information contained in the schedules is presented for the purposes of additional
analysis and is not part of the basic audited financial statements. The information in the schedules was
derived from the accounting records tested in forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

Thunder Bay, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

MNP



Appendix D: Fees and Expenses

Our fees are determined on the basis of time spent on the engagement at the tariff rates of various
members of our team. Any disbursements will be added to the billing.

In the event of an outstanding balance for professional services rendered, we reserve the right to exercise
a llen over those records in our possession for which a lien is maintainable, including but not limited to our
own work product.

You authorize MNP to oblain or exchange any personal information with any personal information agent
for the purpose of establishing or verifying your financial standing.

Qur estimated fees are based on our past experience and our knowledge of the Corporation. This
estimate relies on the following assumptions:
s No significant deficiencies in internal controls which cause procedures o be extended;
= No major unadjusted misstatement(s) or un-reconciled balances,
« Significantly all adjusting entries are completed prior to trial balance and journal entries being
provided to the audit team;
» All management and required staff are available as needed,
« Information and working papers required, as outlined in our letter of fiscal year-end requirements,
are provided in the mutually agreed form and timing; and
» There are no changes to the agreed upon engagement timetable and reporting requirements.

We will ask that your personnel, to the extent possible, prepare various schedules and analysis, and make
various invoices and other documents avallable to our team. This assistance will facilitate the progress of
our work and minimize the cost of our service to you.

If any significant issues arise during the course of our audit work which indicate a possibility of increased
procedures or a change in the audit timetable, these will be discussed with management by the
practitioner leading your engagement so a mutually agreeable solution can be reached. In accordance
with our standard terms and conditions, included as Appendix E, if significant changes to the
arrangements set forth in this engagement letler are required, any change in scope of the engagement will
need to be agreed in writing, in a2 “Change Order” agreement.



Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions

The following standard terms and conditions and the engagement letter to which they are attached form
one agreement and set out the terms and conditions upon which MNP LLP (*MNP") will provide services to
you (the “Corporation®).

1.

Timely Performance - MNP will use all reasonable efforts to complete, within any agreed-upon time
frame, the performance of the services described in the engagement letter to which these terms and
conditions are attached. However, MNP shall not be liable for fallures or delays in performance that
arise from causes beyond our control, including the untimely performance by the Corporation of its
abligations as set out in the engagement letter.

Right to Terminate Services - The Corporation may terminate the engagement upon 30 days written
notice. If this occurs, the Corporation shall pay for time and expenses incurred by MNP up to the
termination date, together with reasonable time and expenses incurred to bring the services to a close
in a prompt and orderly manner. Should the Corporation not fulfil its obligations as set out herein and in
the engagement letter, and in the event that the Corporation fails to remedy such default within 30 days
following receipt of notice from MNP to that effect, MNP may, upon written notification and without
prejudice to its other rights and resources, terminate provision of our services as described in the
engagement lelter. In such case, MNP shall not be responsible for any loss, costs, expenses, or
damages rasulting from such termination.

Change Order - If, subsaquent to the date of this engagement letter, the Corporation requires
significant changes to the arrangements set forth In this engagement letter, the Corporation will be
required to agree to the change in scope of the engagement in writing, in & "Change Order”
agreement, The "Change Order” agreement will set forth the revised arrangements and scope of
services to be performed and any related additional fees associated.

Faes - Any fee estimates by MNP take into account the agreed-upon level of preparation and
assistance from the Corporation's personnel. MNP undertakes to advise the Corporation's
management on a timely basis should this preparation and assistance not be provided, or should any
other circumstances arise which cause actual time to exceed the estimalte.

Administrative Expenses - Administrative expenses include cosls such as long distance telephone
and telecommunication charges, photocopying, delivery, postage, and clerical assistance. These
expenses are based on a percentage of our fees for professional services {5%). Where applicable,
federal, provincial, or other goods and services or sales taxes have been paid on these expenses.
Other major costs such as travel, meals, accommodation and other significant expenses will be
charged as incurred.

Billing - Bills will be rendered on a regular basis as the assignment progresses. Accounts are due and
payable upon receipt. Interest may be charged on the balance of any accounts remaining unpaid for
more than 30 days, at a rate of 1.5% per month (19.56% per annum}.

Taxes - All fees and other charges do not include any applicable federal, provincial, or other goods and
services or sales taxes, or any other taxes or duties whether presently in force or imposed in the future,
The Corporation shall assume and pay any such taxes or duties, without deduction from the fees and
charges hereunder.

Governing Law - The engagement will be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Province of Ontarie, and shall be deemed in all respects to be an Ontario contract. The Corporation
and MNP submit to the courts of that jurisdiction with respect to all matters arising under or by virtue of
this Agreement.

MNP



Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions {continued from previous page)

9. Working Papers - MNP owns all working papers and files, other materials, reports and work created,
developed or performed during the course of the engagement, including intellectual property used in
the preparation thereof. We will provide management with a copy of all practitioner-prepared working
papers necessary for the Corporation's accounting records. MNP may develop software, including
spreadsheets, documents, databases, and other electronic tools, to assist us with our assignment. As
these tools and working papers were developad specifically for our purposes and without consideration
of any purpose for which the Corporation might use them, any such tools which may be provided 1o the
Corporation, will be made available on an "as is” basis only, at our discretion, and should not be
distributed to or shared with any third party. Except as indicated in the Rules of Professional Conduct
or by any legal proceeding, we have no responsibility to share our working papers with you or with any
other parties.

10. Out-sourcing - MNP may out-source to third party service providers certain data-entry functions. To
protect our clients, we have imposed detailed coniractual obligations on these service providers
regarding the safeguarding, confidentiality and security of your personal information. Nevertheless, our
service provider may be required by the applicable laws of a foreign country to disclose personal
information in its custody to that country’s government or agencies pursuant to a lawful court order
made in that country.

11.  Nature of the Limited Liabllity Partnership (LLP) - MNP is a registered limited liability partnership,
as permitted by legistation enacted in our governing jurisdiction of the Province of Alberta. This
legislation provides that a partner of an LLP is not personally liable for any of the debts, obligations, or
liabilities of the LLP or any of the olher partners which may arise as a result of any negligent act or
omission of another pariner of the LLP, or by any employee of the partnership, unless such act or
omission is committed by the partner him or herself or by a person under the partner's direct
supervision and control. All partners of an LLP remain personally liable for any acts or omissions
arising as a result of their own negligence, and for the acts or omissions of those directly under their
supervision or control, and shall continue to be subject to unlimited personal liability for all of the other
liabllities of the partnership. The legislation does not reduce or limit in any way the liability of the
partnership itself, and all of the partnership's assets and insurance coverage ramain at risk,

12. Release and Limitation of Liability - The Corporation and MNP agree to the following with respect to

MNP's liability to the Corporation:

a. In any action, claim, loss or damage arising out of the engagement, the Corporalion agrees that
MNP's liability will be several and not joint and the Corporation may only claim payment from MNP
of MNP's proportionate share of the total liability based on the degree of fauit of MNP as finally
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction.

b. Other than for matters finally determined to have resulted from the gross negligence, fraud or willful
misconduct of MNP, whether the claim be in tort, contract, or otherwise:

i. MNP shall not be liable to the Corporation and the Corporation releases MNP for all claims,
damages, costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and disbursements} incurred or
suffered by the Corporation related to, arising out of, or in any way associated with the
engagament to the extent that the aggregate of such amounts is in excess of the total
professional fees paid by the Carparation to MNP in connection with this engagement during
the 12 month period commencing from the date of the engagement letter to which these
terms and conditions are attached; and,

ii. MNP shall not be liable to the Corporation for any consequential, indirect, lost profit or simitar
damages, or failure to realize expected savings, relating to MNP's services provided under
the engagement letter ta which these terms and conditions are attached.



Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (continued from previous page)

13.

14.

15.

Indemnity - The Corporation agrees to jointly and severally indemnify and hold harmless MNP against:

a. All claims, damages, costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and disbursemants) which
are relaled lo, arise out of, or are in any way associated with the engagement, whether the claims
are civil, penal, regulatory, or administrative In nature, other than those finally determined by a court
of competent jurisdiction to have resulted from MNP's gross negligence, fraud or willful misconduct;
and,

b. Notwithstanding "a.,” all claims, damages, costs, charges and expenses (including legal fess and
disbursements} which are related to, arise out of, or are in any way associated with the
engagement, whether the claims are civil, penal, regulatory, or administralive in nature, that arise
from or ars based on any dsliberate misstatement or omission in any material, information or
representation supplied or approved by any officer or member of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation.

For the purposes of paragraph 12. and 13., *MNP” shall mean MNP LLP and iis directors, officers,
partners, professional corporations, empioyees, subsidiaries and affiliates and to the extent providing
services under the engagement letter to which these terms are attached, MNP LLP, its member firms,
and all of their partners, principals, members, owners, directors, staff and agents; and in all cases any
successor or assignee.

Survival of Terms - The Corporation and MNF agree that clauses 12. and 13. will survive termination
of the engagement.

Electronic Communications - Unless the Corporation prefers we use a particular manner of
communication and specifies as much in writing, MNP will usa whatever form of communication it
deems most efficient in the circumstances. In many instances, this will involve the use of internet e-
mail. With respect to internet e-mail, MNP and the Corporation both acknowladge that neither party
has control over the performance, reliability, availability, or security of internet e-mail. Additionally, MNP
staff may be required or requested to work from your offices during which visits access to and use of
and reliance upon your electronic environment (including but not limited to, your network, Internet, and
extranet resources) is necessitaled, The Corporation accepts that MNP shall not be liable for any loss,
damage, expense, harm or inconvenience resulting from any loss, delay, interception, corruption,
security breach, delivery failure, incompatibility, incompleteness or alteration of any document or
transmission arising from the use of e-mail or the transmission of any document outside of MNP's
electronic environment.
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Vb DalV-Acod?

November2  AbMb¢ doS'aVA- CS'9A?

November 7" to 10" PV: DadoQA- PP o'ILAA? >POC AAL M V CS9AQ?
bAJCb-P?

November 15 V<dC’o " V NVMAA2 AMNAV-A- bPLZQ"AbUN <d\WYMAA- adl DA~
November 23 and 24" DPLA: doPaba® bLIMADLN AAL V.o V' PPCA”, Lad<
December 4" to 8" bPa. doPaba PPIPOLLbodY AAL CC V PMCA-c

December 13" DPLIMY? NPab’ < o NVMAA2 AMAV-AQ? AAL CC V
PPrCA-c

December 14" DCACLAA: LAMMADA? AAL CC V PMPCA-c
December 19" DPLLMY? SLboLAPLY B NEL™N BBV DM <dWYMQA- adlMDA?

December 20" DPLLMY? VIKP Ua DPL bDfo~ CJ9A° DadoqA-
AJMAA-»

January 9" to 11" PP>PLLD" Vb o2 Vb oJ” doPaba' oPPACI? aCAMAV-bM
AAL N3N <=VEC CA-o bAJSCbY

January 16" L<TMADA? POMbU </ A=AYC CLAA0) VP <L~ 9*>= DDV N=Ad
<dYM9A- adlDA? Bl

January 16" to 18" >a doQA: LIMADA? AAL <= bVJ'A-blMd\
January 30" to February 1% doJ'aV d"P DPLba ' LIMADA?
February 7" DVP LZa"AQAbBM b<PUcbU AAL NME°



February 6" to 8" LYPd< DPLA? PPASSA? LIMADA2 AAL N7

February 9" bPLL M7~ ALMAA? Dado9A: AMAV-A2 DalQA2: do?
>aJ'V-A? bAJ'a b AAL CC V Vb <=2 bVJSAbId\ bPCSIMBbWLN

February 14" NPab’ A< o NVMAA2 ATIAV-A-a® b<obU' <dWr9A- adlMDA?
February 21" & 22"  DCACLAA- LATIADA

February 27" to March 1* >a.do9A” LI MADA? AAL NP7
March 7 do LIMMADA-

March 20" & 21% DCACLAA- LAMADA"

March 22" & 23™ AJIMAA2 (co0) >adoQA- LIMADA?
March 29" obe Lb'Ab’

April 3" AP Nb¢ dofa VA CSAA»

April 18" I<LLbY dod'a VA CJ9A°»

April 20" =V <= doJ'aVA- CJ9A”

April 23" N*Ad << S'PA- AIMAA2 LIMADA?

May 8" t0 10" <oJ'aV d"P D>PLba' LIMADA?

May 23" to 24" JoJ'aV DPL ACLAA- DPV- DN Dad'V-A? 45 - LMaSL
>ado9A?/<CL:

May 28" to 30" AP Nb¢ <o a VA CS9A»

June 7% obo LNb'ADL?

June 18" bar<? AooA- CSAA?
June 26™ to 28" D>XUEAY DPLbaM LIMADA?



CC/Y'P N<KPAA? b<PNa’ PV DPL —=Ad= V/ PPUAX - 2017 -
2018
LZA 3/

L~ craadt BBV VPddiP N<PIA b<PNal® BBL BPLba bASLIMADI
P'PQ <IMPAA V<a?

Vb- bA? Ada’ PPRLANSP? DPBV- 2Ad® V/ DUPAX PIPOILAA- AIMQA- DBV- b~
0d% Vb oL/a'AQAbl'da’ AI'V- Ad VAS'AI' <PNaP’ PIPoIILAA- V<o’ DDL
PV-NoMObAKL" L/ 'AQA-BIMd\

<doPab’ PC/ICL]

Vb bA? LS 2o Mod? BPPL Na? bPM<doPyb oA~ DBV: P02 bPL'PL-P? 2016-
2017 or 2017-2018x Vb: #<PD= V="V# oP[Qq DPA-CLI? UAAY A*NV? VPa dCLP<L?
PN<IAL N’ PA:od? 2oa? bAYdSYox Vb b:o? 9d’ adl DA Cbx Vb bA? LS
PP Mbo < 2o7? bAYdS™ PN <A DC by BPBV- AIMAA” (LAO) Vb oC VPOC VI
>rlo7A- AIMAA-c<? MPLLMADS™ AN DC TS'od PPV VBA-C:odx Vb DCACLA
APDN DV- 207 bAYdS™ AN BPPNVCAY PPL AIMAA-c (NALSC), Vb AI'V-
VAL BBV N<Kdo QA AMMAV-A2 VPadC' MKLLbo™ ha? Vb AI'V- GPIMbUP<L
Vb PACQ bPLYQ'AL’> NKMPIA-cY, ha? PN DALMY BBV AJMAA-2 (LAO) Vb MVC'A
TNo QA2 VCbY, DBV DB’ bAa P/~ bAMBUN Vb PQo<d- Lall9Aa’ bA~ Cb-

bPba <<MbUr 0d? P>Q-g<? [PV: AIMAA-Q? (LAO/NALSC) Doy 1<«

Nd™ PYAT 2o 7A- V<2 @ OCLA? DBV NKdo QA AMMAV-A? 474~ DQod dof'aV
DCZICLQY AAL Nr™™ Vb <oa<b' PraCV-=Cb-x

Vb bLIN©CMAV~ P<V- PadoQA-co MNa=A

<bY APC 18, 2017, PadoQA-co L'a®A, Vb a4 a’C PPAQ’ PQo<d? oCoPA:
>NoCLY, Na? LI\C2o Db PQod? “PNaV-Lba’ VPL"dNb-aJ'd™ VP> aAPD~
VIR bPAPDc<? Vo 'V Vb LLe abV-J'MA~ oP<PNal? o Vb <FU* I o
DD>L PEY Da S VA2 D*AN 3 AAMQA-c bAS<KoPCLY™ Vb VIa? VIt
>ado9A-co PCACLA Mbad<CId~ BPPV: DM APDAx Vb <N 'a <b’ Qda’
PAPDL? DV: PadoQA-co Vb VATa? PQod bYACIL~x Vb PLLIAMAA:-
DCZICLY ALMGA2 QA< DDV: ACLAA? Vbad<Cad Vb dof'aV AIMQA-
(MAG) QA'a<: PPV PaadMdadx Vb LK~ Ad PLMCA PKV- ha? CAob /AN
>PNV2CAY DPL ML dod'a Vb Ta odCA Aldab APCa' VI VPa P bd<?
>Q-o<? VINdd'<? bLModV-o~ AAL DC a’C bPIMbUP? L* b2<1=]" PPa D’
bASKCPY~ AAL "'IFALN VA-TBWN BV: L# b2<1-=2]" VPLMCL-d<o’ Vb~ PQ-o -
ML dod'aVx



*Ad* V/ DPUZAN

Vb V- Vo SCI'\ Vb LS VAL MALA DBV 2Ad® V/ DPUPA] IA? AYb
<JU<LSBbA: AP¢ 2016x Vb aA™ TSaNo’ ASNAQ? baCV2Chb Mo dbUP? Vb *Ad*®
V/ BPbPANaa Vb oPT19 bd'P<N PATHUL BV: 2PD= VEA"V#/ AIMQA- (LAO)
do9PL PPV PV-NobM VPBCAQ PYA~ <LI'YA':@? Vb oDMLIMN©°CMAd> CAYd-
bDC bA-CoPPC BPPV: AIMAA? (NALSC)x Vb <N Nd™ LIMADA? oPP>adl MroU
JEI7 APC 27, 2018«

DYP doPaba Na doPAQ?

VIEA? D12 - P2D bobobY, NM"

U2A Ad3, PEID BbAMAV™ doPab’, CC V PIMCA-c?

N2A7? =D — PID bAMAV-~ doPa b’ Ne"

UEAN U1, P10 DLZQ"AQ, Nr°

bU*A> b5, PO DL/Q"AQ, N"

VNEP <\ PED PLPQ'AQ, <oadb)

A7 AbV= - PO <oPab’

>N VN PLoP7bo AAL P3O doPab’ NAa P/~ C°C V PMCAc
=/ BV/AD” PLoPybo AAL PD doPab’ NAaPr™ a3k

L= VNV=" AAL Vb CCaoP CC V PMCAc\

dLC J'ad! —=SPJT VA2 AralD>? MNa Pba V29 AIMQA2, AbMb¢
BELP <2-NJ, NPJo VA2 Qra D>’ Ta Bba V29 AJMQA2, Nre°
PEA? <NZFAY, NPJOV-A2 QaD>? Ta Dba V2 M9 doPab’ NMre"

Co4= V/* <IN AN Pboabo MPCYICLAA oo~ Vb VUId7'P VC 2o7a’ oPPNal>
N<oPL Vb <N A DCYITCLA o Cy< QAMAY dod'aV 7P <A AAL
AJIMAA- (POA) PadoQA-:c @’C by Vb bANALYI~ AT V/ Nd~ ba CV2CI4~
ATAV-A”x Co4® by DAINdobC VBJS'D~ [PV- 2AdE PIPO'LAA: AIMAA?2 Mabo<-
CSAAQ? Ta NPA-CoPL- UEAY ANV Vb PPEAN ANEVE DQod? Da ' VA

>a doQA-a? DM«

Vb b7 oPadCLI? 2o Vb oPlodl? 207’ PA:o<d? I'CA CSAA- <PNo QA Ta
QAAMAV-A? JoPaba MNA7<4~ P9od? CSAA

AANDIAR?, INANDIAR?, AZALDY, <3 =< /bN<d, (1) <Ny, LN <= AbIbe,
A<, <<~NNbY Vb <A-4bLY

AJMQA- (NALSC) Paa Cd<L? doPaba? P9o< CS9Aa? bCb-P? NA-CoPLI™
doJ'aV? bAMALb.oo™x Vb BPPV: doPA? Afa~ 35 CRdbS CroP VU'Aldab Vb
A<~ Ad AN’ MLDoP<Lx Vb CU9A- <PNo QA Ta aAATTAV-A2 AIMQA2 CI9-
do? QAJS'ab-P’ PQ:od? AIMQA@?, Ta bNPJo<ody, DDL PC PadofAoc Ta



QAATAV-A-a Dol doPaba' 9A-a<: PDL CASAMAV-<N DBL AIMQA-c,
Fa Ad MPP'P oL bod~ Do MNCIL~ Ib? Pob-aAA?, DYNZA- ATIAV-A?,
PA-CoPLL~ PEID doPaba? blM:o- CS'9A- AM9A? a MLLA: ANC<~ b~
bb-7brbUN NKMIA? MNa M<KoPCId~ <dWYM9A-a? AAL CJ'A o Vb BPPV: 1o~ <N
VN doPab’ oCoP%, LEA"™ V2N J-A-4bL D%

Vb Ta 2o’ oPlod™ DDL LLYC AIMAA-c TVd™ UPA Ad= (VU™ DV PO
<doPaba' bP PPOLLbo™ Ta bUAS M- DBV PIPOILAA) M>a D~ AIMA?
fa NP PIPOLL doPaba? DPBV: PSCAA? JoPbMAA? DI TYd™ QA-ad NUASST
P PS<KAA? 1oPbMAA? J7TMAV-A2 AAL CS'GA-0

Vb PPV- AAMAQA2 IMa M9-Lb? A<-d™1 2o V<PNado™ [Yd~ Co4® A" PA-CoPld?
P10 PCYICLA bAa P/~ CAob o<d\oldl BPCYICLY MA7<KY MfaabMD™ bPa
N<PAA- x LI~ TC'"A aCV-2Cbo’ dd NKM1A@? Vb L]~ dol? DBV
MPVJdICLx

Vb by DBV AJIMAA2 2o? <PNabo VIK Ny~ CSLAA2? DANMAV-A- <oPab’ Vb
AAL ASLCaoP NM% Vb VIK by oPdoPY™ Na’ L\Q DBV doPA? DMk Vb CSLA-
<doPab’ N aaCAPIMNAA: doPab’ Aad CLKLIMPKN N9~ CSN9A AMQA° [Vd-
PANMAD PO doPabal Vb by CSAA? SPJo VAR Ta aAATIAV-AR AIMAA-%
Vb ATAA2 bPa. AIMAA2 (NALSC) <oPaba Clrab.od\

Vb AJMAA? Ta. 2oza? PI9- MVd- NaPhyo << 1 QAa oP~ DIV =V-2 PED JIA
by NdobC PO ASPIVA? Ta DANMAV-A- doPab’x V2 oC Acgod, doJ'go
Vb doJ'a V1 Vb CCANS MPCAQP? <A LPPDA-c bDPANPI- <PC DC Ad
bALBVI<~ DPL dod'aV 4P DPLA-c PANTYbod~ DAo<dY A

by oPCLIbod~, a’C by b<d\WYCId~ PAMIADL~ BBV PEID AIMAA

<C2 A=A oPPMA-CoPdl? Vb LU. A"doAblM CS"do Vb bCb-Poo PALoP<L%
AN QL o PPMA-CoPdl Vb L.U. A%doAblMN CSdo Vb bA>c o PALoP<x
CPIBQ UAR? APV o UVeA» DNYdo DPV: bo Ao ok

N<Ml1A-@? Vb AIMQA-Q?

5 April 2017 — o PLI-MAZI DPURA] N<? J'Lbo QA aa blMAA? AIMAA2 DDV: DI
LN dV-A- ASNAQ? DL CC V Vb b? Vb b b7 obUP?> A PNPIA-c? DPL
doJ'aV 4P Vb DC b7 bPP>MOCd<~ JS'Lboy’ Ta Ad bPD>NIDCI]~ PQ-o<d-
J'Lbo N«

7 April 2017 — oPAN Ta PPL CCYYP PPIPOILAA? b<PNobU' NPJoV-A-

UVe QA2 Na aablMbA-a? AIMAA-2 T¥d- M>Na? o7’ DBV \PJo VA2 Ta

ba V2 M9A2 AIMAA-x



20 April 2017 — o PA-NC: DPV- bP<PNobUN CEAN NKMIA? o JS'Lbo" 9Aa <
bAS<<La <M<~ ASNYAa? APa.a bM<«

bAda b’ D>V 10 July — oPAN DL TPV LLoA? AIM7CLAA AJMAA-»

18 July 2017 — P10 L/ "AQA” VPN ICLYb: 1719 ANb'AboA-oo<?

3 August 2017 — o PLLMK V2 715 DPL, A\CEAY dodaV =Ad= V/ AMAV-A-Q?, AAL
122 QYNEVEAY

8 August 2017 — PoN<J® AAL PV-A? LIMADA-c — Vb oP<PNa’ L/a'Ab’ D>V
>N ALMAA? (NALSC) AMAV-A2 AJMPAA2 — Vb PPV a9 a<d- PN>obU

9 August 2017 - AIMAA~ (NALSC) ba V>MAA- AIMAA» DDL oM

11 September 2017 — o PLI-MMAV: DDV- DM ATMAV-A- AIMAQA-x

11 September 2017 — b-P*A> PV-No* ACAV-Ac QA AIMAA? — (KA bCdabod~
CJS9AQ?)

26 September 2017 — o PLI-MAV- LYPb-bL> DBV DM PadoQA? NPAMbUN CS9A -0
28 September 2017 — P> LI MADA? — VPo ICL? b<<MYy AAL ABNbC M Ad
AAL @Pa-3d Pado9AblMd' PN Pab dAY VCdabo<-

29 September 2017 — P =< 17[CLAA: AIMAA? LIMADA -«

13 October 2017 — o PN<JC <=2 =P <Y CLAA: AYdoAbld* PPV DN ooV
>ado9AbM

23 October 2017 — o PA-CoPL" P'Pod oA? Dol DCYITCLA bA-CoPLL™ o'V
Mo ASLNAQ? —oPAocd Qo Mba<<CL’> PPL LYal"Ab’x Vb LLA- <oblbU BPV:
AJIMPAA? Ta Ad AAL AMAV-A- <YTCLAA-c Vb <YTCLAA- AJMAA-o

12 November 2017 — P10 N<KMIA? AAL S0 b-PEA? LADAQ?

12 November 2017 — P=<D NKMIA? AAL NM" oV POUcT DA AJMAA-bIrd
14 November 2017 <NdS\b"Ab? CSMAAR oPPACI?

17 November 2017 — o PL " PPDPLbo" da. VN Mo Aa¥bt, UEAY AYNV2,
PMdoPab’ PadoQA-co PNy N PM>aMqA-co PadoQAco DIV A2Ado
>DV- DN PPJIMbUP? <dWYMAA-a? bASSP? CSAAQ? DPV- BN NPJo VA2, Ta
>a.doQA” b>oMbUP?, PYAx

22 November 2017 — o Pba-" A<P A¥b”, DaabMq DBV- DN DPadocQA-co
a.ablMAA~ DPCACLA bNKMLbo™ P<KV: PMPadoQA oo L\azA

22 November 2017 — P10 doPab’ PNL] DPL bVJLAbIdY, CC V PPCAc

22 November 2017 — P10 doPab’ PN DPBL L2 V3 AJMQA-o

23 November 2017 — P10 doPab’ PN DPL ASAX/ VELT ALMQA-c

28 and 29 November CJ"AA” =Ad= <oPab’ CJS'9A2 PPA-U AAL bSM<» VPPJS D~
<“Prba’ JPOA'AQA- V< 0%

30 November 2017 — o Py AAL Qa-3d AJIMAA-bIMdx P<odlbU Vb UVe
NPPAV-A-Q? bICUC~ Do PCYICLAN

6 December 2017 — P10 N<KMIA? oPDOC AAL <<'U aDCIA-c

13 December 2017 — CSAA” 2Ad* <oPab’ Na PD doPab’ PPNLMICL? LCL
>PLba’ PLIMADA O

14 and 15 December 2017 — P30 <oPa b’ PN BPL PEVAC DBYbNYAbIMdY

15 December 2017 — P*<D DLPYa"AQ PNLM] AAL <-LYdo

22 January 2018 — <d\WCb~? LI-MADA? AAL P o<y =Ad= AIMAA-x T1b~ AIMSLbx



30 January 2018 — P*<D doPab’ PNLMd AAL <= =" J'7CLAA- AYdoAblMd"
31 January 2018 — o PCA-aDC AAL 234\ aa CAPYNM9A2 DPBV- DI LMCV-A

7 February 2018 — P30 <J.oPab’ PNLMd AAL CC V Pado9A: ba V- M9A-c

14 February 2018 — P10 DL/ "AQ PNM] AAL L"Pb-bL*

15 February 2018 — P20 J.oPa b’ PNLM] AAL UAd <A< Ta NVPMQA»
ATIAV-A-Q?

18 February 2018 — P20 J.oPa b’ PNLMd AAL JAY? bANS oo™ CC V P<KADA-bIA
8 March 2017 — P10 PPNLMICK? PQ:od? <-dd™ doJ'aVA- CS9A”

27 March 2018 — o PATTAV: DPL LIMADA-c bPOMbUN LLA- LIMADA? CC V
CP>JMoUN DBV- o AOrbU PANobUN LMo dV-A2 AIMQA-

29 March 2018 — =VMV/ Vo V/N BPA-CLAA- DCACLY

“Nda' LI MADAQ? PQod dod'aV' PadoQA», CC V PIPLLoA? Padoc9A-
DCACLAY, Qa2d PCACLAY, LIMADAQ?, PadoqA: DCACLYY, PV- N < V:alMA~
DCACLAY AIMQA2 LAO, CC V DNPJa VY DCACLAY, NM™ PANPJa VY DCACLAY,
PV-NoMObAK0 oboCLAA? LI MADA?, ot dod'aV YPJo VA2 <A~
AJMAA2, @a =] DCYICLAA- AIMAA-x

<d0PbMAA-Q? Vb 2o7A: aDCLA? AIMA-Q?

CSAA» N<Kdo QA AIMAA2 - Vb dofaV N<Kdo9A? AIMAA2 BPPL AIMQA-c
(MAG) <N PLCV: DPBV- bVPADIM a /=P Qa 2] bAJS'Cb ' Vb DDV
bP>MACL-od 3™ A V-C"AobUP? oVAQ? b PAS\ab-P? Vb Ta b PAIMBWN
<d\WMAA- PalMqA-Q? BPPV: DN dod'aV NPJo VA2 ba V2M9A2 ALIMQA2 [Yd- b
M<obd<d~ A7’ AAL Qa 34 bAJS<PNoLboox Vb P<LdYCad <N PPV o
d'P<L-oo™ PLPAAIDLx Vb AI'V- VJ'b? QAT oWABUN Qb/ LLYC AJM9A-Q? NAJ e b-P?
AAL <oadb' Vb NMP"/bP*<Px Vb oad~ PPL bCaoP? AIMAA-c (NALSC)

o OP<ATALCT? < V-alMA-c DBV AIMQA2 bAIMbUN

P'P_O'ILAA-

19 June 2017 — Vb- AIMQA- (NALSC LAO) <oPaba Vb- CS9A? fAd= V/ doPabal
PANN AAL VEPVE Jo'a V' PadocQAbM VLdPUSb Na VPLIMALY 14N =Ad=
doPabax N oPAN AAL *Ad® ANAV-A2 DPUAAN PPLYQ"AQA-bITdY, D342,
VJL'dPSb PIPOIILAA? DMy VU dPJS a. Ta. oPAN DPL A7 N<KdoQA» ASMAGAa?, Vb
by D3<2D, DDV PIPOLAA DN Vb Ta AMAA? bPIb:od o LY VALY DBL
AJIPAA2 OB, PYA? @2C DPALS JAY N<Kdo9A-o) o2 QDCL? DAV- dAY
PAP'AY DL AIMAA-o BPM)x Vb <oPaba' APDKN LI~ DPV- VPANMADY Lo
QAL ANALS by obdb Ta Mbad<CL' <PN 9P>NNYo DPAMIAIA-a < DM Db
N<doQA: ASLNA@? Db’ =Ad= V/ DPUAAX Vb bN<KIKIP? Vb- bA? QA2 DPBV- AJMAA-
(NALSC) M>rAool - PPN<K'AQCLAx

5 July 2017 — LPPDA- PP o'ALAA? Plrab.od (LAO) <oPaba BP>V: PPLMDCV-A?
>a MQA? DN



2 to 4 October 2017 — bPa. P30 <oPaba' PANIY AAL PED PIPO'LAA~ bPIMbUN
32D Vb bPNKIN o'V AJIMAA» D<V: PPPado9A-cox

6 -9 November P=<D CC V doPaba’ PPIPOoLL b o

10 — 11 November — P10 P'Po'LAA~ CCH/Y"P bLMSLbP?> ALNAA-Q? LIMADAR, NP
23 November 2017 — P30 doPaba’ a*P>\"" PIPo'LAA~

23 and 24 November 2017 — DPL P'Po'<LAA AAL V-aV

30 November 2017 — P10 <.oPaba' - bPdoICI<~ VJIb-MM9A2 LNDCV-A”
PIP_O'JLAA-

December 5, 6 Vb- 7th 2017 — bPa. <oPaba' PPIP oL Lbodr AAL CC V

11 December 2017 — P=<D doPaba’ bLMCIA? LMAA- PP O'ILAA~ Plrabod

18 December 2017 — P=<D <oPaba’ bPMLMCLbod~ A9 PIPOILAA? PIMabogd
16 — 18 January 2018 — CJ"QA” =Ad= doPabal, N\PJoV-A2 P MAA-2 JoPab’ Vb
P10 doPaba’ Plabod Pal' VA PadoQA-a’ LIMADA”

18 — 19 January — P=<D PILMSYA? P'PO'LAA? P<PNobU AAL NM" <S'a VA:
>OUIMNAblMd

21 February 2018 — P'P_o"'<LAA~ (HUB) Plrabod" P=ID <oPaba}

CSAA? NPJo VA2 Ta aAATIAV-A2 AIMAA- aDCLA?
ASLU DBL VNV “D”

Vb LK MADA-Q? bPOMbUP? BHL CC V PMPLLoA? Pado QA2 DCACLYY, Qa2
DCACLQAY, LIMADAQ?, PadoqA? DPAMTIAVN DCACLAY, PV-No' DCACLAY ALMAA-»
LAO, CC V NPJo VA2 DCACLAY, NM" SPJo VA2 DCACLYY, PV-NoMobAK o
oboCLAA? LI MMADA

Statistics

P=dD AJMPAA> —

LLe bCYP> NKMIA-@? badlrbUP? Na bPUSBUP? A bdo 19
LS DDV NLKMIA? AJMAA

LLe bCYP? NKMIA-@? badrbupP? BPHV- b~ 27

LLe BC/P> NKIUA-Q? bPJBUP? DPBV- b~ 44

LLo BCPP? LP/al'Aba? bPJBUP? BPBV- b~ 08

LLe BCYP? bQ-UA-a? A’ b<PNobUP? 02

LLe bCPP> NKMIA-@? bA? bPSBUP? Vb bLIMATBUP? 07

LLe BCYP> NKMIA-@? Vb Vb bllabo™ badCP? AUMAA: <oPab’ 01



*Ad* V/ L<-D09AQ?
AS<IU AAL <GV “A”— GDR/Duty Counsel 7o 9A- 1<I™JA- L/a’AbDA’ [a <A
bA"AZb_o<T-~

bA-CL9- DCYICLQ
ASIU AAL <GV “B”



<V3n\n .\
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Nishnawba-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontarie-Duty Counsal Statisitlces

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Apr-17

TOTALS —
|€siminal 11|Phane Call 31iMale 16}
[Family 18|walk In 7|Female 29
[Employment ofemall of

Civil ofFallow Up 2}

Admin of

Estats 4

First Natlon 4

Treaty o)

Qther 3}
[Matawa (Windigo

Aroland 1 |Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 2 |cat Lake 0
Eabamatoong 1 Koocheching o]
Ginoogaming 0 North Caribou ol
Homepayne of Sachigo Lake of
Long Lake #58 1 slate Falls 0
Marten Falls 2 Whitewater Lake 0
|Neskantaga 1 Total 1
Nibinamik 2 jwabun

Webequie 1 Beaverhousa |
Total 11} Brunswick House ]
[1ENA Chapleau of
[Kitchanuhmaykoosi 1 Matachewan aof
Lac Seut 3 [Mattagami s}
[Muskrat Dam o] Wahgoshig o]
[Piiangikum o} Total 5
Whitssand 0 [Mushkegowu

Tatal 4 Attawapiskat 3
independants {Chapleau Crae ol
[Flylng Post of Fort Albany 5

Mishkeegogamang o Kashechewan

Macrehee o |Missanabie of
Sandy Lake 3| [Moose Cree 1

eenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou 0]
Total 4 Total 9]
Keewaytinook Oklmakanak Shibogama
|eer Lake 1 [kasabonika Lake 1|
[Fort Severn o} l@glsherlake o}
Keewaywin o} Wapekeka o}
MacDowell Lake o| Wawakapewin o}
{North Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake 2
Poplar Hill 2 Tatal 2
Total 3 Other 1
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =40




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
May-17
TOTALS i
Criminal 14]Phane Call 33|Male 16}
Family 16{Walk In 6|Female 23)
{Employment 1jEmall ]|
[ 2}Follow Up o}
Admin 0]
[Estate 6}
|First Nation o]
Treaty of
|other of
Matawa [Windigo |
Aroland 1/ |Bearskin Lake o
Constance Lake 2 Cat Lake 1
Eabametoong 51 Koocheching [i]
|Glnoogaming 1 North Caribou 2
{Homepayne o} Sachigo Lake of
|Long Lake 458 of Stata Falls o}
Marten Falls 2 Whitewater Lake o}
[Neskantaga 3 Fotal 3
{nibinamik ol Wabun
Webequie o] Bsaverhouse of
Total 14} |Brunswick House [
lirva |Chapleau 1
|itchenuhmaykaasi 1 Matachewan 0
[Lac Seul 1 Mattagami 2
|Muskrat Dam D |Wahgoshig 0
Plkangtkum o Total 3]
Whitesand o} [Mushkegawu
Total 2 Attawaplskat 2
independants Chapleau Crea 0
Flying Post 0 Fort Albany 2
Mishkeagogamang 2| Kashechewan o]
Mocrebec 0 Missanabia o}
Sandy Lake 1 Moose Crea 2
Weenusk 1] Taykwa Tagamou 2
otal 3 Total 8
[Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Deer Lake o] Kasabonlka Lake o]
fort Severn o} iinglisher Lake o]
|Keewaywin 2 Wapekaka 2
[MacDowell Lake ol lwawakapewin o}
|North Spirit 1ake Dj Wunnumin Lake 1
Paplar Hill o Tatal 3
Tatal 2| Other 1
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 39




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontarle-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyar
Jun-17
ITOTALS
Criminal 7{Phone Call 29|Male 14
Familly 10)walk In 8lFemale 23
{Empioyment 2|Emall o
[l 10{Follow Up of
Admin o]
|Estate 4
[First Nation 1
Treaty [+f
Othar 3
Matawa | Windi
Aroland a |Bearsidn Lake i
{Constance Lake 1 |Cat Lake 1
[Eabametoong 5 [Koacheching 0
[Ginoogaming D North Carlbou [
[Homepayna o} Sachigo Lake 1
Long Lake HS8 0 Slate Falls |
Marten Falls 1 Whitewater Lake of
{Neskantaga Totai 3
[Nibinamik 1 Wabun
[webequle i |Beaverhouse [
Total 8 [Brunswick House [
SFNA |chapleau 0
[«itchenuhmaykoosi 2 |Matachawan 0
|Lac Sew 1 [Mattagami 1
Muskrat Dam 0] Wahgoshig 0]
Pikangikum 1 Tatal 1
Whitesand 0 Mushksgowu
Total 4 Attawaplskat 1
Independants [Chapleau Cree of
Flying Post ol Fart Albany 1
Mishkeegogamang 2 Kashechawan o
Mocrabec 0 Missanable 0
Sandy Lake 1 Moose Cree 1
Weenusk [ Taykwa Tagamou ol
Total 3 iTotal 3
|Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Dear Lake 2 [Kasabonika Lake 0
Fort Sevemn 2 Kingfisher Lake 1
Keewaywin 1] IWapelteka 1
MacDowell Lake 0 |Wawakapewin of
North Spirit Lake 1 [Wunnumin Lake i}
Poplar HIll 1 Total 2
Tatal & Other 7
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =37




Nishnawhe-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse] Statisitles

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Jula7
[raTaLs
[Criminal 11|rhone Call 30|Male 1
Family 18]Walk In 6)Femals 25
Employment ojemail [l|
[cwit afFollow Up o]
Admin of
|Estats
[Flest Nation o]
Treaty 0j
{othar 1)
Matawa | Windigo
Aroland o} Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 1 [Cat Lake 4] |
|[Eabametoong q Koocheching o
|Ginoogaming 1] North Caribau 2
[Homepayne Sachigo Lake o}
I_Eﬂuke HsB 0l Slate Falls of
Marten Falls 2] Whitewater Lake o|
[Neskantaga 0 Total 3
|NIbinamik 1 Wabun
|webequie o} Beaverhouse [i
Total | IBrunstt House ol
[ [chapleau o}
[Kitchenuhmaykoos! 3 [Matachewan of
ltacSeul 1 |mattagami o]
IMuskrat Dam gl Wahgashig o]
Plkangikum Tatal 0
[whitesand o] [Mushkegawu
Total 4 Attawaplskat 2
|independants IChapleau Cree of
Flying Post 0 {Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang _ 3 |Kashechewan o}
Mocrebec o} [Missansbie o
Sandy Lake 2 Moasa Cree 4
Weanusk 1 Taylowa Tagamou 0|
atal [ Tatal 8
|Keewaytinook Dkimakanak Shibogama
|Deer Lake 0} Kasabon/ka Lake 0
|Fort Severn o} Kingfisher Lake 0]
[keewaywin 1 Wapekeka ol
[macDowell Lake 0} {Wawakapewin o}
Narth Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake 1
Paplar Hill 1 Total 1
Total 2 Other a
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 36




Nishnawbe-Askl Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statlsitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Aug-17

TOTALS |
Criminal 8{Phona Call 27|Male 9|
[Famity 10{Walk In 3|female 21
|Employment 3{Emall |
icivil 4|Follow Up o}

Admin af
|Estate 2

First Nation o]

Treaty o}

|Other 3}

[Matawa | Iwindlp |
Aroland o} Bearskin Lake 0]
[Constance Lake o} [catiake of
|eabametaong 1 Kaocheching a}
|Ginoogaming o} North Caribou 2
|Homepayne o] Sachigo Lake o}
Long Lake #58 1 Siate Faolls 0
|Marten Falls 0 Whitewater Lake 0
|Neskantaga [ Total 2
Nibinamik | Wabun

Wehequle 1 Beaverhouse 1]
Tatal 3 Brupswick House 1
JIENA Chapleau |
{itchenuhmaykaos! 4 Matachewan 1
Lac Seu! 1 Mattagami 2
Muskrat Dam 0} Wahgoshig 1
Pianglkum o} Total 6
Whitesand 9| Mushkegowu

Total 5 Attawapiskat 2
{indepandants Chapleau Cree i |
{Flying Past o Fort Albany 3}
Mishkeegogantang 1 Kashechewan of
Mocrebec 0] Missanabie 0]
Sandy Lake 2 Moosa Cree 3
Weenusk 0 Taykws Tagamou 1
Total 3 Tatal 9
{Keawaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake (1] ¥asabonika Lake (4] |
IFort Sevem 0 Kingfisher Lake o}
[Keewaywin fil} Wapekeka o]
{MacDoweli Laka of Wawakapewin o}
[Narth Spirit Lake 0 {Wunnumin Lake 0f
{eoptar Hill i} Tatal o}
Total o |other 2

TOTAL CUENTS ASSISTED = 30




Nishnawbue-Aski Lagal Servicas Corporstion
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse) Statisitles

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyar
Sep-17

TOTALS

|Criminal giPhone Call 37{Male 15
fFamily 22|Walk In 8|Female 30
|Employment 1[Email o]

Civil 7|Follow Up o]

Admin o]

Estate 3]
|First Nation 3

Treaty [

Other [}
|Matawa |windigo

Aroland 0 |Bearskin Lake 1
|Constance take 1 [cat Lake of
[Eabametoong 5 Koocheching of
Glnoogaming Of North Carlbou 2
[Harnepayne o Sachigo Lake 0
Long Lake #58 4 Slate Falls 4]
Marten Falls 0] |whitewatar Lake o
[Neskantaga 0} Total a|
Nibinamik | Wabun

Webequin 2 Beaveshouse 0
Total 12 [Brunswick House 1
IFNA Chapleau 0
[iitchenuhmaykaosl 1| Matachewan o
Lac Seul 5 Mattagaml 2
Muskrat Dam o Wahgashig 0
Plkanglkum of Tatal 3
|Whitesand o} [Mushkegowu

Tatal Attawaplskat 3
Independants {Chapleau Cree o}
{Flying Post [} [Fort Albany 3
Mishkeegogamang 1 [xashechewan [
Mocrebec of [Missanable 0
Sandy Lake 2 [Moose Cree 4
[Weenusk p} ykwa Tagamou 0
Total 4 Total 10
Keewaytinock Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 1 Kasabonlka Lake 0}
Fort Severn 0| !ﬂgl‘lshur Lake o]
Keewaywin 3| Wapekeka o
|MacDowell Lake o] Wawakagawin ol
[North Spisit Lake 1] Wunnumin Lake ]|
Poplar HIll | Total 0
Total 5 Other 1

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =45




Nishnawbe-Askd Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontarlo-Duty Counse! Statisitics
Thunder Bay Advice Lowyer
Det-17
ITOTALS
Criminal 13|Phone Call 23|Mala 9
[Family 7Iwalk In &|Female 20}
Employment 2|Email of
Chvil 3[Follow Up o}
Admin 0}
|Estate 2}
[First Nation of
Treaty of
{Other 2]
[Matawa ] {Windigo
Aroland o) {Bearskin Lake 1
|Constanca Lake o} |cat Lake 2
Eabameloong 3| [Koocheching o}
Gincogaming ol North Caribou 2
Homepayne OI Sachiga Lake 1
Mun 158 a Slate Falls af
Marten falls | Whitewater Lake o
Neskantags o} Total 3
|NIbinamik o} Wabun
Webequle 3| Beaverhouse of
Total 6 Brunswick House o
(FNA Chapleay of
Kitchenuhmaykoost o Matachewan 0
|Lac Sewd 1 Mattagami 1
Muskrat Dam 1 Wahgoshig 0
|Pikanglkum 1 Tota) 1
Whitesand 0] Mushkegowu
Tatal 3 iAttawaplskat 3
independants Chapleau Cree 0
Flying Past 0] [Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang 1 Kashechewan 0]
Mocrebec 0 [Missanable (1]
Sandy Lake 4 Moosg Cree 0f
Weenusk 0 Yaykwa Tagamou D
Total 5 Total 5
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Deer Lake 0 |xasabonlka Eake ]|
{Fort Sevem 1 Kingficher Lake 2
{Keewaywin of Wapekeka o]
{MacDowell Lake of Wawakapewin o
INnnh Spirit Lake 0 Wunnumin Lake 1]
Poplar Hill a Tatal 2
Total 1 |other o}
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 29




Nishnawba-Asld Legal Services Corporation
Lagal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Nowv-17

TOTALS |
Criminal 10|Phone Call a6lMale 20|
Family 25|Walk In 13|Famale 29|
Employment 3|Emall o]

Chil 4jFoliow Up o]

Admin [1]]

Estata 6
{Flrst Natlon 1

Treaty 0
{other 0|

Matawa [Windigo

Aroland [ |8earskin Lake 3
Constance Laka i Cat Lake 2
Eabametoong _ 3 Koacheching (]|
Ginoogaming 1 North Caribou o]
[Homepayne of Sachigo Luke 1
Long Lake #58 1 Slate Falls 1
Marten Falls 3] Iwhitewatar Lake o}
[Naskantaga o Total 7
[Ninamik 4 Wabun

Webequie o Beaverhouse 0
Total 13| Brunswick House 1
IFNA Chapleau o]
|Kitchenuhmaykoasl 2 Matachewan 1
Lac: Saul 3 [Mattagami o}
Muskrat Dam 1 Wahgoshig [
Pikangikum 1 Tatal 2|
Whitesand o] Mushkegowts

Total 7 Attawaplskat 7
independants Chapleau Cree V]
[Flying Past of [Fort Albany 1
[Mishkeegogamang o [kashechawan 2|
Moecrebec o] |Missanabie of
Sandy Lake 2| [Moose Cree o}
Waenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou o}

atal 3 Total 10

Keewaytinook Okimalanak Shibogama

Deer take 1 |Kasabanika Lake of
Fort Severn 1 Kingfisher Lake 0
Keewaywin 1]} Wapsakeka 3
MacDowell Lake af 'Wawakapewin o
North Spirit Lake 0} Wunnumin Lake o}
{Poplar HI o) Total 3|
Total 2 ~ |other 2

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =49




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsal Statisities
Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Dec-17
|FOTALS
Criminal 14]Phane Call 17|Male 11
Family 13|Walk In 15|Female 25]
Employment oJEmail ol
lawat ; 2|Follow Up o}
Admin of
|Estate S
|First Nation o
Treaty o}
[Other 2
Matawa I_wﬂn
Aroland 1 Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake of [cat Lake 0
[Eabametoong 4} [koocheching 0
|Gincogaming of [North Carlbou 3
|Hnm_e_Eyne 0| Sachigo Lake &
Long Lake 458 a Slate Falls 0
IMarten Falis 0] |Whitewater Lake o
Neskantaga 0 Total 10}
Nibinamik 2 Wabun
'Wd:eql.ﬂa 1] Beaverhouse 0f
Tatal 7 Brunswick House of
IFNA Chapleau of
Kitchenuhmaykoosi o] Matachewan o}
{Lac Seul o Mattagami ol
{Muskrat Dam ol [wahgoshig a
{Pikanglkum o} Total of
[Whitesand o] Mushkegowu
Total 0 Attawapiskat 1
|independants Chapleau Cree of
Iﬁ_mg Post 0| Fort Alhany 1
Mishkeagogamang 5 Kashechewan 2
[Mocrabec o Missanahle 0
Sandy Lake 0 Moose Crea 1]
|wWeenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou 1
Total 6 Total 5
|Keewaytinook Oldmakanak Shibogama
|peer Lake 2 Kasabonika Lake i)
[Fort Severn 3 Kingfisher Lake 0l
Ikeewaywin 1 Wapekeka o}
MacDowell Laka o} Wawakapawin o
North Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake o}
Poplar Hill ol Total ol
Total 6 |other 2
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 36




Nishnawhe-Ask Legal Services Corporation
tegal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Jan-18

[taTats |
ICriminal 12|Phone Call 37|Male 18]
Famlly 16|Walk In 12|Famata 31
Employment 6]Emall of

Civil 5]Follow Up o|

Admin of

Estate 2|

First Natlon 1

Treaty 0}
|Other 7|
[Matawa Windigo

Aroiand 1 Bearskin Lake 2
|Constance Lake S [Cat Lake o]
|Eabametoong 3 [ooeheching ol
IGInoanmlng 3 [Narth Caribou ol
Hormepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 1
Long Lake 858 3 Slate Falls 0]
Marten Falls 4 [Whitewater Lake o}
[Neskantags 3 Total 3]
|mibivamik 1 Jwabun

[webegqule 2 {Beaverhouse o]
Total 5 Brunswick House of
JiFNA Chapleau of
hatchenuhmaykoos! 1 Jmatachewan o]
|Lac Seul 4 [Mattagami o}
[Muskrat Dam 1 [Wahgoshig o}
|Pikangikum 1 Total 0
Iwhitesand o} Mushkegowu

Total 7 Attawapiskat o}
independants Chaplaau Crae of
Flying Post 1 Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang 2 Kashechewan o
Mocrahec 0 Missanabie 0}
Sandy Lake 0} Maose Cree 1
Weanusk of Taykwa Tagamou [
Total 3 Total 3
|Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 1 |Kasabonlka Lake |
Fort Severn 1 {Kingfisher Lake 1
Keawaywin o} Wapekela o}
|MacDowell Lake 0 Wawakapeawin 0
{North Spirit Lake 0 [Wunnumin Lake 2
[roptar Hitt of Total 3
Tatal 2 Other 3

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 45




Nishnawbe-Asld Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse! Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Feb-18

{TOTALS N

Criminal 14|Phone Call 28Male 14
Family 13|walk In 9fFemale 23
Employment 3|Email of

avll 3[Fallow Up o}

Admin 0]

Estate 3

First Natlon of

Traaty of

Othar 1]
[Matawa | [windigo

Aroland 2l Bearskin Lake o}
Constance Lake 4 |Cat Lake 0]
Eabametoo: 2 Koacheching o
Ginoogaming 1 Narth Caribou 1
Hormepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 0
Long Lake #58 2 State Falis o}
Marten Falls 1 Whitewater Lake _of
Neaslantaga 0} Total 1
Niblnamik o] Wabun

Websquie 1 |seaverhause o}
Total 14 1Brunswick House of
IFNA Chapleau o]
Kitchenuhmaykoaosl Matachewan 2
Lac Saul 1 |Mattagami 4
|Muskrat Dam 1 |Wahgoshig 0
[Pikanglkum o} Tota 6
[Whitesand 0 Mushkegowu

Tatal 2 Attawapisial 0
Independants |Chapleau Eree o}
Flylng Post 0 Fort Albany o]
|Mishkeegogamang 1 Kashechewan 2
Mocrebec ol jMissanabije 0
Sandy Lake 6] Mouse Cree 2
Weenusk o} Taykwa Tagamoy 0
Total 7 Tota! 4
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
jDeer Lake 2 {Kasabonika Lake 0
[Fort Severn o Ki er Laka of
[Keewaywin o| Wapekeka 0
MacDowall Lake o} Wawalapewin 1
North Spirit Lake of Wunnumin Lake 0
Poplar HHl ol Total 1
Tatal 2 Other 0
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 37




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Sesvices Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawysar
Mar-18

TOTALS i
Criminal 7|Phona Calt 20Mala 12
Family 11|WalkIn 13|Female 21
Employment 2[Emalt of

Qult 10{Fallow Up 0|

Admin o

Estate o}
[First Nation D

Traaty 6] |

Other 3]

Matawa | |windigo

Arcland 0 Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 1 Cat Lake 0
Eabametoang 5 Koocheching o]
[Gincogaming 1 North Carlbou o]
Hormepayne ol Sachlgo Lake of
Long Lake #58 o] Slate Falls of
|Marten Falis 2| Whitswater Lake of
[Neskantaga 2| Total 1
Nibinamik 1 Wabun

Webequle El Beavarhouse of
Total 15 Brunswick House o
IFNA Chapleau o]

Kitchenuhmaykoosi 1 Matachewan 1
[Lac 500t of Mattagami 0
[Muskrat Dam o] Wahgoshig 0
[Pikanglkum o] Total 1
Whitesand o} |

Total 1 Attawapiskat |
|independants {Chapleau Cree a|
Flying Post ]| JFart Albany ol
IMlshkeagogamang 1 {Kashechawan al
[Mocrebac al Missanable o
Sandy Lake 2 Muaose Cree 2
Weenusk [} Taykwa Tagamou

Total 3 Total 3
|Keewaytinock Okimakanak Shibogama

|Daer Lake 2 Kasabonika take of
[Fort Severn 2 I__Iﬂg!fjsher Lake o]
|[Keewaywin 0 Wapekeka o}
{MacDowell Lake o} Wawakapewin o
{North Spirit Lake o} Wunnumin Lake 1
[Poplar Hil ol Total 1

Total 4 Other 2

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 31
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VWL a"Ne MDK VWL obA'oM- | VWLSL-MR VWLRL-DS
wC
April 2017 LLo: 122 LLo:0 LLo:0 LLo:17
bCA-Y\: 87 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-Y\: 16
bPAMN: 35 bPAN: 0 bPAZN: 0 bPAPN: 1
May 2017 LLo:134 LLo:0 LLo:0 LLo:21
bCA-Y\: 98 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-Y\: 20
bPA\: 134 bPAMN: 0 bPAMN: 0 bPAMN: 1
June 2017 LLo: 150 LLo: 187 LLe:0 LLo: 36
bCA-P\: 102 bCA-P\: 45 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-P\: 26
bPAN: 48 bPAMN: 142 bPAMN: 0 bPAN: 10
July 2017 LLo: 156 LLo: 197 LLeo:0 LLe:30
bCA-Y\: 107 bCA-Y\: 44 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-P\: 20
bPA\: 156 bPAMN: 153 bPAMN: 0 bPA/N: 10
August 2017 LLo: 164 LLo: 204 LLo:0 LLo:23
bCA-P\: 93 bCA-P\: 49 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-P\: 23
bPAPN: 71 bPAP\: 155 bPAN: 0 bPAN: 0
September 2017 LLo:171 LLo: 209 LLo:0 LLo:35
bCA-Y\: 96 bCA-¥\: 50 bCA-Y\: 0 bCA-Y\: 30
bPAMN: 75 bPAF\: 159 bPAMN: 0 bPAF\: 5
October 2017 LLo: 182 LLo:218 LLo:22 LLo: 44
bCA-/\: 101 bCA-/\: 59 bCA-/\: 22 bCA-/\: 39
bPAMN: 81 bPAF\: 159 bPAMN: 0 bPAF\: 5
November 2017 LLo: 188 LLo: 116 LLo: 29 LLo:56
bCA-/\: 90 bCA-/\: 40 bCA-/\: 27 bCA-/\: 50
bPAF\: 98 bPAP: 76 bPAPN: 2 bPAN: 6
December 2017 LLo: 193 LLo:118 LLo:34 LLo:53
bCA-/\: 95 bCA-¥\: 36 bCA-/\: 32 bCA-/\: 53
bPAP\: 98 bPAF\: 82 bPAPN: 2 bPAPN:
January 2018 LLo:101 LLo:131 LLo:47 LLo:58
bCA-Y\: 99 bCA-Y\: 44 bCA-Y\: 44 bCA-Y\: 58
bPAFN: 2 bPAP\: 87 bPAF\: 3 bPAPN:
February 2018 LLe: 103 LLe: 136 LLe: 70 LLo: 64
bCA-Y\: 84 bCA-Y\: 41 bCA-Y\: 57 bCA-Y\: 64
bPAFN: 19 bPAF\: 95 bPAFN: 13 bPAPN:
March 2018 LLo:111 LLo: 139 LLo: 81 LLo:70
bCA-Y\: 92 bCA-Y\: 41 bCA-Y\: 68 bCA-Y\: 68
bPA/N: 19 bPAN: 98 bPAMN: 13 bPAMN: 2
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Legal Aid Statistics
Attached as Appendix “A” - GDR/Duty Counsel Expense Report, Certificates and Persons Assisted

APPENDIX “A”
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Advice Lawyer
Attached as Appendix “B”

APPENDIX “B”



Nishnawba-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontarie-Duty Counsal Statisitlces

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Apr-17

TOTALS —
|€siminal 11|Phane Call 31iMale 16}
[Family 18|walk In 7|Female 29
[Employment ofemall of

Civil ofFallow Up 2}

Admin of

Estats 4

First Natlon 4

Treaty o)

Qther 3}
[Matawa (Windigo

Aroland 1 |Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 2 |cat Lake 0
Eabamatoong 1 Koocheching o]
Ginoogaming 0 North Caribou ol
Homepayne of Sachigo Lake of
Long Lake #58 1 slate Falls 0
Marten Falls 2 Whitewater Lake 0
|Neskantaga 1 Total 1
Nibinamik 2 jwabun

Webequie 1 Beaverhousa |
Total 11} Brunswick House ]
[1ENA Chapleau of
[Kitchanuhmaykoosi 1 Matachewan aof
Lac Seut 3 [Mattagami s}
[Muskrat Dam o] Wahgoshig o]
[Piiangikum o} Total 5
Whitssand 0 [Mushkegowu

Tatal 4 Attawapiskat 3
independants {Chapleau Crae ol
[Flylng Post of Fort Albany 5

Mishkeegogamang o Kashechewan

Macrehee o |Missanabie of
Sandy Lake 3| [Moose Cree 1

eenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou 0]
Total 4 Total 9]
Keewaytinook Oklmakanak Shibogama
|eer Lake 1 [kasabonika Lake 1|
[Fort Severn o} l@glsherlake o}
Keewaywin o} Wapekeka o}
MacDowell Lake o| Wawakapewin o}
{North Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake 2
Poplar Hill 2 Tatal 2
Total 3 Other 1
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =40




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
May-17
TOTALS i
Criminal 14]Phane Call 33|Male 16}
Family 16{Walk In 6|Female 23)
{Employment 1jEmall ]|
[ 2}Follow Up o}
Admin 0]
[Estate 6}
|First Nation o]
Treaty of
|other of
Matawa [Windigo |
Aroland 1/ |Bearskin Lake o
Constance Lake 2 Cat Lake 1
Eabametoong 51 Koocheching [i]
|Glnoogaming 1 North Caribou 2
{Homepayne o} Sachigo Lake of
|Long Lake 458 of Stata Falls o}
Marten Falls 2 Whitewater Lake o}
[Neskantaga 3 Fotal 3
{nibinamik ol Wabun
Webequie o] Bsaverhouse of
Total 14} |Brunswick House [
lirva |Chapleau 1
|itchenuhmaykaasi 1 Matachewan 0
[Lac Seul 1 Mattagami 2
|Muskrat Dam D |Wahgoshig 0
Plkangtkum o Total 3]
Whitesand o} [Mushkegawu
Total 2 Attawaplskat 2
independants Chapleau Crea 0
Flying Post 0 Fort Albany 2
Mishkeagogamang 2| Kashechewan o]
Mocrebec 0 Missanabia o}
Sandy Lake 1 Moose Crea 2
Weenusk 1] Taykwa Tagamou 2
otal 3 Total 8
[Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Deer Lake o] Kasabonlka Lake o]
fort Severn o} iinglisher Lake o]
|Keewaywin 2 Wapekaka 2
[MacDowell Lake ol lwawakapewin o}
|North Spirit 1ake Dj Wunnumin Lake 1
Paplar Hill o Tatal 3
Tatal 2| Other 1
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 39




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontarle-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyar
Jun-17
ITOTALS
Criminal 7{Phone Call 29|Male 14
Familly 10)walk In 8lFemale 23
{Empioyment 2|Emall o
[l 10{Follow Up of
Admin o]
|Estate 4
[First Nation 1
Treaty [+f
Othar 3
Matawa | Windi
Aroland a |Bearsidn Lake i
{Constance Lake 1 |Cat Lake 1
[Eabametoong 5 [Koacheching 0
[Ginoogaming D North Carlbou [
[Homepayna o} Sachigo Lake 1
Long Lake HS8 0 Slate Falls |
Marten Falls 1 Whitewater Lake of
{Neskantaga Totai 3
[Nibinamik 1 Wabun
[webequle i |Beaverhouse [
Total 8 [Brunswick House [
SFNA |chapleau 0
[«itchenuhmaykoosi 2 |Matachawan 0
|Lac Sew 1 [Mattagami 1
Muskrat Dam 0] Wahgoshig 0]
Pikangikum 1 Tatal 1
Whitesand 0 Mushksgowu
Total 4 Attawaplskat 1
Independants [Chapleau Cree of
Flying Post ol Fart Albany 1
Mishkeegogamang 2 Kashechawan o
Mocrabec 0 Missanable 0
Sandy Lake 1 Moose Cree 1
Weenusk [ Taykwa Tagamou ol
Total 3 iTotal 3
|Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Dear Lake 2 [Kasabonika Lake 0
Fort Sevemn 2 Kingfisher Lake 1
Keewaywin 1] IWapelteka 1
MacDowell Lake 0 |Wawakapewin of
North Spirit Lake 1 [Wunnumin Lake i}
Poplar HIll 1 Total 2
Tatal & Other 7
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =37




Nishnawhe-Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse] Statisitles

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Jula7
[raTaLs
[Criminal 11|rhone Call 30|Male 1
Family 18]Walk In 6)Femals 25
Employment ojemail [l|
[cwit afFollow Up o]
Admin of
|Estats
[Flest Nation o]
Treaty 0j
{othar 1)
Matawa | Windigo
Aroland o} Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 1 [Cat Lake 4] |
|[Eabametoong q Koocheching o
|Ginoogaming 1] North Caribau 2
[Homepayne Sachigo Lake o}
I_Eﬂuke HsB 0l Slate Falls of
Marten Falls 2] Whitewater Lake o|
[Neskantaga 0 Total 3
|NIbinamik 1 Wabun
|webequie o} Beaverhouse [i
Total | IBrunstt House ol
[ [chapleau o}
[Kitchenuhmaykoos! 3 [Matachewan of
ltacSeul 1 |mattagami o]
IMuskrat Dam gl Wahgashig o]
Plkangikum Tatal 0
[whitesand o] [Mushkegawu
Total 4 Attawaplskat 2
|independants IChapleau Cree of
Flying Post 0 {Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang _ 3 |Kashechewan o}
Mocrebec o} [Missansbie o
Sandy Lake 2 Moasa Cree 4
Weanusk 1 Taylowa Tagamou 0|
atal [ Tatal 8
|Keewaytinook Dkimakanak Shibogama
|Deer Lake 0} Kasabon/ka Lake 0
|Fort Severn o} Kingfisher Lake 0]
[keewaywin 1 Wapekeka ol
[macDowell Lake 0} {Wawakapewin o}
Narth Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake 1
Paplar Hill 1 Total 1
Total 2 Other a
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 36




Nishnawbe-Askl Legal Services Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statlsitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Aug-17

TOTALS |
Criminal 8{Phona Call 27|Male 9|
[Famity 10{Walk In 3|female 21
|Employment 3{Emall |
icivil 4|Follow Up o}

Admin af
|Estate 2

First Nation o]

Treaty o}

|Other 3}

[Matawa | Iwindlp |
Aroland o} Bearskin Lake 0]
[Constance Lake o} [catiake of
|eabametaong 1 Kaocheching a}
|Ginoogaming o} North Caribou 2
|Homepayne o] Sachigo Lake o}
Long Lake #58 1 Siate Faolls 0
|Marten Falls 0 Whitewater Lake 0
|Neskantaga [ Total 2
Nibinamik | Wabun

Wehequle 1 Beaverhouse 1]
Tatal 3 Brupswick House 1
JIENA Chapleau |
{itchenuhmaykaos! 4 Matachewan 1
Lac Seu! 1 Mattagami 2
Muskrat Dam 0} Wahgoshig 1
Pianglkum o} Total 6
Whitesand 9| Mushkegowu

Total 5 Attawapiskat 2
{indepandants Chapleau Cree i |
{Flying Past o Fort Albany 3}
Mishkeegogantang 1 Kashechewan of
Mocrebec 0] Missanabie 0]
Sandy Lake 2 Moosa Cree 3
Weenusk 0 Taykws Tagamou 1
Total 3 Tatal 9
{Keawaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake (1] ¥asabonika Lake (4] |
IFort Sevem 0 Kingfisher Lake o}
[Keewaywin fil} Wapekeka o]
{MacDoweli Laka of Wawakapewin o}
[Narth Spirit Lake 0 {Wunnumin Lake 0f
{eoptar Hill i} Tatal o}
Total o |other 2

TOTAL CUENTS ASSISTED = 30




Nishnawbue-Aski Lagal Servicas Corporstion
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse) Statisitles

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyar
Sep-17

TOTALS

|Criminal giPhone Call 37{Male 15
fFamily 22|Walk In 8|Female 30
|Employment 1[Email o]

Civil 7|Follow Up o]

Admin o]

Estate 3]
|First Nation 3

Treaty [

Other [}
|Matawa |windigo

Aroland 0 |Bearskin Lake 1
|Constance take 1 [cat Lake of
[Eabametoong 5 Koocheching of
Glnoogaming Of North Carlbou 2
[Harnepayne o Sachigo Lake 0
Long Lake #58 4 Slate Falls 4]
Marten Falls 0] |whitewatar Lake o
[Neskantaga 0} Total a|
Nibinamik | Wabun

Webequin 2 Beaveshouse 0
Total 12 [Brunswick House 1
IFNA Chapleau 0
[iitchenuhmaykaosl 1| Matachewan o
Lac Seul 5 Mattagaml 2
Muskrat Dam o Wahgashig 0
Plkanglkum of Tatal 3
|Whitesand o} [Mushkegowu

Tatal Attawaplskat 3
Independants {Chapleau Cree o}
{Flying Post [} [Fort Albany 3
Mishkeegogamang 1 [xashechewan [
Mocrebec of [Missanable 0
Sandy Lake 2 [Moose Cree 4
[Weenusk p} ykwa Tagamou 0
Total 4 Total 10
Keewaytinock Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 1 Kasabonlka Lake 0}
Fort Severn 0| !ﬂgl‘lshur Lake o]
Keewaywin 3| Wapekeka o
|MacDowell Lake o] Wawakagawin ol
[North Spisit Lake 1] Wunnumin Lake ]|
Poplar HIll | Total 0
Total 5 Other 1

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =45




Nishnawbe-Askd Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontarlo-Duty Counse! Statisitics
Thunder Bay Advice Lowyer
Det-17
ITOTALS
Criminal 13|Phone Call 23|Mala 9
[Family 7Iwalk In &|Female 20}
Employment 2|Email of
Chvil 3[Follow Up o}
Admin 0}
|Estate 2}
[First Nation of
Treaty of
{Other 2]
[Matawa ] {Windigo
Aroland o) {Bearskin Lake 1
|Constanca Lake o} |cat Lake 2
Eabameloong 3| [Koocheching o}
Gincogaming ol North Caribou 2
Homepayne OI Sachiga Lake 1
Mun 158 a Slate Falls af
Marten falls | Whitewater Lake o
Neskantags o} Total 3
|NIbinamik o} Wabun
Webequle 3| Beaverhouse of
Total 6 Brunswick House o
(FNA Chapleay of
Kitchenuhmaykoost o Matachewan 0
|Lac Sewd 1 Mattagami 1
Muskrat Dam 1 Wahgoshig 0
|Pikanglkum 1 Tota) 1
Whitesand 0] Mushkegowu
Tatal 3 iAttawaplskat 3
independants Chapleau Cree 0
Flying Past 0] [Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang 1 Kashechewan 0]
Mocrebec 0 [Missanable (1]
Sandy Lake 4 Moosg Cree 0f
Weenusk 0 Yaykwa Tagamou D
Total 5 Total 5
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
Deer Lake 0 |xasabonlka Eake ]|
{Fort Sevem 1 Kingficher Lake 2
{Keewaywin of Wapekeka o]
{MacDowell Lake of Wawakapewin o
INnnh Spirit Lake 0 Wunnumin Lake 1]
Poplar Hill a Tatal 2
Total 1 |other o}
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 29




Nishnawba-Asld Legal Services Corporation
Lagal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Nowv-17

TOTALS |
Criminal 10|Phone Call a6lMale 20|
Family 25|Walk In 13|Famale 29|
Employment 3|Emall o]

Chil 4jFoliow Up o]

Admin [1]]

Estata 6
{Flrst Natlon 1

Treaty 0
{other 0|

Matawa [Windigo

Aroland [ |8earskin Lake 3
Constance Laka i Cat Lake 2
Eabametoong _ 3 Koacheching (]|
Ginoogaming 1 North Caribou o]
[Homepayne of Sachigo Luke 1
Long Lake #58 1 Slate Falls 1
Marten Falls 3] Iwhitewatar Lake o}
[Naskantaga o Total 7
[Ninamik 4 Wabun

Webequie o Beaverhouse 0
Total 13| Brunswick House 1
IFNA Chapleau o]
|Kitchenuhmaykoasl 2 Matachewan 1
Lac: Saul 3 [Mattagami o}
Muskrat Dam 1 Wahgoshig [
Pikangikum 1 Tatal 2|
Whitesand o] Mushkegowts

Total 7 Attawaplskat 7
independants Chapleau Cree V]
[Flying Past of [Fort Albany 1
[Mishkeegogamang o [kashechawan 2|
Moecrebec o] |Missanabie of
Sandy Lake 2| [Moose Cree o}
Waenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou o}

atal 3 Total 10

Keewaytinook Okimalanak Shibogama

Deer take 1 |Kasabanika Lake of
Fort Severn 1 Kingfisher Lake 0
Keewaywin 1]} Wapsakeka 3
MacDowell Lake af 'Wawakapewin o
North Spirit Lake 0} Wunnumin Lake o}
{Poplar HI o) Total 3|
Total 2 ~ |other 2

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED =49




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsal Statisities
Thunder Bay Advice Lawyer
Dec-17
|FOTALS
Criminal 14]Phane Call 17|Male 11
Family 13|Walk In 15|Female 25]
Employment oJEmail ol
lawat ; 2|Follow Up o}
Admin of
|Estate S
|First Nation o
Treaty o}
[Other 2
Matawa I_wﬂn
Aroland 1 Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake of [cat Lake 0
[Eabametoong 4} [koocheching 0
|Gincogaming of [North Carlbou 3
|Hnm_e_Eyne 0| Sachigo Lake &
Long Lake 458 a Slate Falls 0
IMarten Falis 0] |Whitewater Lake o
Neskantaga 0 Total 10}
Nibinamik 2 Wabun
'Wd:eql.ﬂa 1] Beaverhouse 0f
Tatal 7 Brunswick House of
IFNA Chapleau of
Kitchenuhmaykoosi o] Matachewan o}
{Lac Seul o Mattagami ol
{Muskrat Dam ol [wahgoshig a
{Pikanglkum o} Total of
[Whitesand o] Mushkegowu
Total 0 Attawapiskat 1
|independants Chapleau Cree of
Iﬁ_mg Post 0| Fort Alhany 1
Mishkeagogamang 5 Kashechewan 2
[Mocrabec o Missanahle 0
Sandy Lake 0 Moose Crea 1]
|wWeenusk 1 Taykwa Tagamou 1
Total 6 Total 5
|Keewaytinook Oldmakanak Shibogama
|peer Lake 2 Kasabonika Lake i)
[Fort Severn 3 Kingfisher Lake 0l
Ikeewaywin 1 Wapekeka o}
MacDowell Laka o} Wawakapawin o
North Spirit Lake 0| Wunnumin Lake o}
Poplar Hill ol Total ol
Total 6 |other 2
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 36




Nishnawhe-Ask Legal Services Corporation
tegal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Jan-18

[taTats |
ICriminal 12|Phone Call 37|Male 18]
Famlly 16|Walk In 12|Famata 31
Employment 6]Emall of

Civil 5]Follow Up o|

Admin of

Estate 2|

First Natlon 1

Treaty 0}
|Other 7|
[Matawa Windigo

Aroiand 1 Bearskin Lake 2
|Constance Lake S [Cat Lake o]
|Eabametoong 3 [ooeheching ol
IGInoanmlng 3 [Narth Caribou ol
Hormepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 1
Long Lake 858 3 Slate Falls 0]
Marten Falls 4 [Whitewater Lake o}
[Neskantags 3 Total 3]
|mibivamik 1 Jwabun

[webegqule 2 {Beaverhouse o]
Total 5 Brunswick House of
JiFNA Chapleau of
hatchenuhmaykoos! 1 Jmatachewan o]
|Lac Seul 4 [Mattagami o}
[Muskrat Dam 1 [Wahgoshig o}
|Pikangikum 1 Total 0
Iwhitesand o} Mushkegowu

Total 7 Attawapiskat o}
independants Chaplaau Crae of
Flying Post 1 Fort Albany 2
Mishkeegogamang 2 Kashechewan o
Mocrahec 0 Missanabie 0}
Sandy Lake 0} Maose Cree 1
Weanusk of Taykwa Tagamou [
Total 3 Total 3
|Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 1 |Kasabonlka Lake |
Fort Severn 1 {Kingfisher Lake 1
Keawaywin o} Wapekela o}
|MacDowell Lake 0 Wawakapeawin 0
{North Spirit Lake 0 [Wunnumin Lake 2
[roptar Hitt of Total 3
Tatal 2 Other 3

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 45




Nishnawbe-Asld Legal Services Corporation

Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counse! Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advica Lawyer
Feb-18

{TOTALS N

Criminal 14|Phone Call 28Male 14
Family 13|walk In 9fFemale 23
Employment 3|Email of

avll 3[Fallow Up o}

Admin 0]

Estate 3

First Natlon of

Traaty of

Othar 1]
[Matawa | [windigo

Aroland 2l Bearskin Lake o}
Constance Lake 4 |Cat Lake 0]
Eabametoo: 2 Koacheching o
Ginoogaming 1 Narth Caribou 1
Hormepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 0
Long Lake #58 2 State Falis o}
Marten Falls 1 Whitewater Lake _of
Neaslantaga 0} Total 1
Niblnamik o] Wabun

Websquie 1 |seaverhause o}
Total 14 1Brunswick House of
IFNA Chapleau o]
Kitchenuhmaykoaosl Matachewan 2
Lac Saul 1 |Mattagami 4
|Muskrat Dam 1 |Wahgoshig 0
[Pikanglkum o} Tota 6
[Whitesand 0 Mushkegowu

Tatal 2 Attawapisial 0
Independants |Chapleau Eree o}
Flylng Post 0 Fort Albany o]
|Mishkeegogamang 1 Kashechewan 2
Mocrebec ol jMissanabije 0
Sandy Lake 6] Mouse Cree 2
Weenusk o} Taykwa Tagamoy 0
Total 7 Tota! 4
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama
jDeer Lake 2 {Kasabonika Lake 0
[Fort Severn o Ki er Laka of
[Keewaywin o| Wapekeka 0
MacDowall Lake o} Wawalapewin 1
North Spirit Lake of Wunnumin Lake 0
Poplar HHl ol Total 1
Tatal 2 Other 0
TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 37




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Sesvices Corporation
Legal Ald Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics

Thunder Bay Advice Lawysar
Mar-18

TOTALS i
Criminal 7|Phona Calt 20Mala 12
Family 11|WalkIn 13|Female 21
Employment 2[Emalt of

Qult 10{Fallow Up 0|

Admin o

Estate o}
[First Nation D

Traaty 6] |

Other 3]

Matawa | |windigo

Arcland 0 Bearskin Lake 1
Constance Lake 1 Cat Lake 0
Eabametoang 5 Koocheching o]
[Gincogaming 1 North Carlbou o]
Hormepayne ol Sachlgo Lake of
Long Lake #58 o] Slate Falls of
|Marten Falis 2| Whitswater Lake of
[Neskantaga 2| Total 1
Nibinamik 1 Wabun

Webequle El Beavarhouse of
Total 15 Brunswick House o
IFNA Chapleau o]

Kitchenuhmaykoosi 1 Matachewan 1
[Lac 500t of Mattagami 0
[Muskrat Dam o] Wahgoshig 0
[Pikanglkum o] Total 1
Whitesand o} |

Total 1 Attawapiskat |
|independants {Chapleau Cree a|
Flying Post ]| JFart Albany ol
IMlshkeagogamang 1 {Kashechawan al
[Mocrebac al Missanable o
Sandy Lake 2 Muaose Cree 2
Weenusk [} Taykwa Tagamou

Total 3 Total 3
|Keewaytinock Okimakanak Shibogama

|Daer Lake 2 Kasabonika take of
[Fort Severn 2 I__Iﬂg!fjsher Lake o]
|[Keewaywin 0 Wapekeka o}
{MacDowell Lake o} Wawakapewin o
{North Spirit Lake o} Wunnumin Lake 1
[Poplar Hil ol Total 1

Total 4 Other 2

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 31
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bP<AbUP bP<AbUP bP<AbBUP 0 | bP<AbBUP
71 155

‘V-V-AN/C bd<q"UP LLo 209 LLe O LLo 35

2017 171 b<d<q"UP 50 | b<I<KC"UP 0 | b<<<"UP 30
b<<q"UP 96 | bP<ABUP bP<AbUP 0 | bP<AbUP 5
bP<AbUP 159
75

DALLI-AAPC | LLe 182 LLo 218 LLo22 LLe 44

2017 bl<q"UP b<<<"UP 59 | bP<AbBUP bPP<ABUP
50 bP<AbUP 22 39

159 bP<AbUP bP<AbUP 5

bP<AbUP
81

b“bNare LLo 188 LLo 116 LLe 29 LLo 56

2017 b<<q"UP 90 | <I<<"UP1 40 | b<I<<"UP 27 | bI<1"UP 50
bP<AbBUP bP<AbUP bP<AbBUP 2 | bP<ABUP 6
98 76

<LPaJ™ LLo 193 LLo 118 LLo 34 b<<q"UP 87

2017 bi<q"UP b<<q"UP 36 | bI<C"UP 32
95 b P<ABUP bP<AbBUP
bP<AbBUP 82
98

PULLACPC LLe 101 LLo 131 LLo 131 LLo 58

2018 bi<<"UP 84 bI<<"UP 44 bPP<AbUP 44 | bPP<AbUP 58
bPP<AbUP 19 | bPP<ABUP 95 | bP<AbUP 13 bP<ABUP

PUAFC 2018 LLe 103 LLo 136 LLe 70 LLo 64
b<<"UP 84 bd<q"UP 41 bd<q"UP 57 b<<"UP 64
bP<AbU P19 bP<AbUP 95 bP<AbUP 13 bP<AbUP

FPP-AAPC 2018 | b<<<"UP 111 | LLe 139 LLo 81 LLo 70
bl<<"UP 92 biI<<"UP 41 bi<q"UP 68 bi<q"UP 68
bP<AbUP 19 bP<AbUP 98 bP<AbUP bP<AbUP 2




A Symbol of Unity

The Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services symbol combines the tradi-
tional elements of the Aboriginal community with those of the
Euro- Canadian tradition.

Designer Roy Kakegamic weaves a scales of justice theme into
the symbol using a balancing peace pipe. The pipe is recog-
nized as the historical sacred symbol for bringing understand-
ing between different people.

The peace pipe is balanced on a tipi, which is the ancestral
symbol for the home. On each side of the tipi is a feather hang-
ing from the peace pipe. One side of the tipi is coloured white
and the other side black symbolizing the need for understand-
ing of the two sides of every story. In the middle of the tipi is a
red opening, an open invitation to the coming together of both
sides.

The three elements: the peace pipe, tipi and feathers are con-
tained in a circle - the circle of life - without beginning or end.
This creates the fourth element in the design. Each of these
elements represents one of the four directions of the compass.
This theme is repeated again in the four sacred colours in the
symbol: red, yellow, white and black.

Combined, the elements in the symbol show that Nishnawbe-
Aski Legal Services represents the co-existence of two parallel
systems of justice leading from conflict toward balance; from
understanding to trust; and, from union to peace.








